TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table 18.2.3.2 - Business Access Line Features	
Table 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features	10
Table 18.2.5.1 - Central Office Trunk Services and Features	70
Table 18.2.6.1 - IntraLATA Local Calling Usage Services	78
Table 18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail Services and Features	79
Table 18.3.1.1 - Analog Services and Features	88
Table 18.3.1.2.1 - ISDN BRI Services and Features	91
Table 18.4.2 - Extended Demarcation Services	95
Table 18.4.3 - Station Cabling Services	106
Table 18.4.4 - Migration-Out Professional Services	113
Table 18.4.5 - Services Related Hourly Support	116

Table 18.2.3.2 - Business Access Line Features

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by the Contractor: Business Access Lines connect you to our central office over standard telephone wiring. This connection is an access to local calling, local toll calling, and Custom Calling features. It also provides access to long distance carrier networks for long distance calling.

Geographic Availability: Throughout the AT&T California service area.

Service Limitations and Restrictions: Subject to availability of facilities. Some features, if noted in Feature Restrictions, are available only on certain CO switch types. Switch types present in the serving Central Office for a given location can be determined by contacting AT&T or though publicly available data sources.

State Associated Administrative Fee (SAAF) Services identified below with "Yes" in the SAAF Applied column will have a 2.5% fee applied to the Monthly Recurring Charge or usage. Charges below do not include the SAAF. The SAAF will appear as a separate line on the customer's invoice.

Table	18.2.3.2 - Business Ac	cess Line Feat	ures								
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
Table	18.2.3.2.a - Business A	Access Line Fe	atures								
1	Basic Business Access Line	BLB01	Line	Business Access Line	Class of service for any customer who is subscribing to one or more than one switched access line. Basic lines give customers access to the network by providing dial tone and the ability to make calls. Includes Caller ID blocking and Message Waiting	\$125.00	\$11.76	\$125.00	Yes	No	Required
2	Call Waiting	ESX	Line	Notifies the End- User of an incoming call when on another call	Busy Call Forwarding overrides Call Waiting. A Waited call cannot be	\$5.70	\$3.89	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required

Table	ole 18.2.3.2 - Business Access Line Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					answered by an answering machine or recording equipment. Series completion hunting overrides ESX in the 5ESS switch						
3	Call Forwarding	ESM	Line	Directs all incoming calls to any other designated telephone number	"Forwarded to" number must be in North America and must be a minimum of seven (7) digits with a maximum of eleven (11) digits and is not available to international numbers. Call Forwarding takes precedence over hunting when install on first line of hunt group.	\$5.70	\$3.89	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
4	Busy Call Forwarding	EVB	Line	Automatically re- routes calls to another station or voice mail box as designated by the End-User when the line is busy	"Forwarded to" number must be in North America. Hunting and Call Forward Busy is not compatible in DMS switch. "Forwarded to" Number may be different local exchange only in the 5ESS and the DMS central office. If	\$5.70	\$3.89	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required

Table	e 18.2.3.2 - Business Access Line Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					"forwarded to" number is a DID number the DID must be preconditioned to accept the call. When both Busy Call Forward and Delayed Call Forward are on the sane line the "Forwarded to" Number may be different only in the 5ESS and the DMS switch.						
5	Restricted Call Forwarding	EVC	Line	Forwards calls to a permanent number designated by the End-User, either inside or outside of the local exchange when the line is busy	If "forwarded to" number is a DID number the DID must be preconditioned to accept the call.	\$5.70	\$3.99	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
6	Call Forward Ring No Answer	EVD	Line	Forwards calls to a number designated by the End-User after a selected number of rings	"Forwarded to" number must be in North America and must be a minimum of seven (7) digits with a maximum of eleven (11) digits and is not available to international precedence over hunting when install on first line of hunt group.numbers.	\$5.70	\$3.99	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.3.2 - Business A	ccess Line Feat	ures								
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					Call Forwarding takes						
7	Selective Call Forwarding	CSF	Line	Forwards up to ten (10) pre- programmed numbers to another telephone number designated by the End-User	"Forwarded To" Number cannot begin with "0", be outside the North America numbering plan and must be a minimum of 7 digits and a maximum of 11 digits. Transmission Quality may be reduced depending on requirements to complete call, distance and routing.	\$5.70	\$4.65	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
8	Remote Access to Call Forwarding	RAF	Line	Allows the End-User to control and change Call Forwarding from any touch-tone phone	Customer must have Call Forwarding feature. Must use set with touch tone capability to operate.	\$5.70	\$1.38	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
9	Caller ID	CNM	Line	On incoming calls, provides the number and name of the calling party for display on Caller ID compatible CPE	Display equipment is required and must be purchased separately.	\$5.70	\$7.12	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
10	Callback	CCR	Occurren ce	Calls back the last incoming call	Calls back the last number that called, even if the user does not know the name or	\$5.70	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required

Table	e 18.2.3.2 - Business Access Line Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					number of the caller. If the line is busy, Call Return keeps trying for up to 30 minutes. When the line is free, Call Return gives a signal with a special ring, and then proceeds to place the call. You can place or receive calls while Call Return is at work. In addition, you can call back more than one number at a time.						
11	Call Screen	ССВ	Line	Allows the End-User to reject calls from up to ten (10) preprogrammed numbers, including the last number called if the End- User so designates	When a call from the list comes in, the user's phone does not ring, and the caller hears an AT&T recording indicating the call will not be accepted.	\$5.70	\$4.65	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
12	Call Trace (per trace)	CALTR	Trace	Subscriber initiates a trace on the last call received by dialing a code that automatically requests that the local telephone company record the calling number, date and time of the last call received. For	Call Trace to a line with Busy Call Forwarding, call forward Delayed Call forward, or Call Forward will only track the originating number Call Forwarded.	\$5.70	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required

Table	18.2.3.2 - Business Ad	cess Line Feat	ures								
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				law enforcement use only							
13	Distinctive Ringing	CLP	Line	Allows the End-User to program the phone to recognize calls from up to ten (10) specific numbers. A special ring is heard when one (1) of those numbers calls	Must be in the same service area as the Priority Ringing. A Remote Call Forwarding (RCF) number not compatible with Priority Ringing.	\$5.70	\$4.65	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
14	Three Way Calling	ESC	Line	Connects three (3) people on three (3) different lines at the same time	Transmission quality may be reduced depending on requirements to complete connection, distance and routing.	\$5.70	\$3.89	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
15	End-User Speed Calling	ESL	Line	Allows an End-User to pre-program frequently called numbers	Called numbers must be a minimum of 7 digits and a maximum of 16 digits. Three digits will not work (411, 611, or 911).	\$5.70	\$3.89	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
16	System Speed Calling	ESF	Line	Allows various groupings of frequently called numbers (up to 70) to be pre- programmed	Business Access Lines have the capability of supporting up to 30 numbers (two- digit dial) individually.	\$5.70	\$5.56	\$24.00	Yes	No	Required
17	Caller ID Blocking	CNMBK	Line	Automatically blocks delivery of user's	Calls to 800/888 numbers do not	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.3.2 - Business A	ccess Line Feat	ures								
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				phone number on all calls from the line	have the capability to block Automatic Number Identification (ANI).						
18	Message Waiting Indicator	EMW	Line	Will notify user that a message is waiting in the Contractor's voice mail with Stutter dial tone and/or (on equipped phones) light indicator	Not available on some Series 50 voice mail.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
19	Hunting	HTG	Occurren ce	Allows incoming calls to search a group of multiple lines in the same exchange, of same class of service, and of the same Customer for an idle line.		\$30.00	\$0.50	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
20	900/976 Blocking	CL1	Line	Blocks 900 and 976 Calls		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
21	Call Waiting ID	NWL	Line	Call Waiting ID lets the Customer know who is calling while on another call.	Customer must have call waiting and caller ID to have this feature	\$5.70	\$3.00	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
Table	18.2.3.2.b - Business	Access Line Fe	atures								
22	Toll Blocking	TRS	Line	Blocks Toll Calls		\$0.00	\$1.90	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
23	Business Access Miscellaneous Change Charge	NWCCF	Change	Rearrangements of existing Busy and Delayed Call Forwarding features.	Rearrangements of existing Busy and Delayed Call Forwarding features require the following	\$5.70	\$0.00	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required

Table	8.2.3.2 - Business Access Line Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					Miscellaneous Change Charge: (1) Change designated number of delayed rings (2) Change forwarded to number (3) Change designated number of delayed rings and forwarded to number on same line e. Changes to the Personal Identification Number (PIN) for Remote Access to Call Forwarding require the following Miscellaneous Change Charge: (1) Change the designated PIN						
24	Anonymous Call Rejection	CRE	Line	Allows Customer to reject incoming calls from callers who have blocked delivery of their telephone number (marked private)		\$5.70	\$1.90	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
25	Non Published Listing	NPU	Line	Non published telephone numbers are not listed in directories or Directory Assistance		\$0.00	\$1.50	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.3.2 - Business Ac	cess Line Feat	ures								
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				records available to the general public.							

Table 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by Contractor: Centrex is a business voice communications product that we can provision over copper and fiber facilities. This service includes station wiring to the jack. These facilities originate in our central office. We maintain all facilities 24x7. Centrex service is a central office based communications system equipped with primary station lines, capable of receiving direct in-dialed calls and direct out-dialed calls.

Geographic Availability: Throughout the AT&T California service area.

Service Limitations and Restrictions: Subject to availability of facilities. Some features, if noted in Feature Restrictions, are available only on certain CO switch types. Switch types present in the serving Central Office for a given location can be determined by contacting AT&T account team.

State Associated Administrative Fee (SAAF) Charge: Services identified below with "Yes" in the SAAF Applied column will have a 2.5% fee applied to the Monthly Recurring Charge or usage. Charges below do not include the SAAF. The SAAF will appear as a separate line on the customer's invoice.

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvices and	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
Table	18.2.4.1.a - Central Off	ice Exchange S	Services an	d Features				•			
1	Primary Station Line	AAFTX	Line	Primary Station Line for analog or digital services	Message Waiting is only provided if Voice Mail is also ordered.	\$70.00	\$6.51	\$70.00	Yes	No	Required
2	Ring back Notification	SAK	Line	Automatically notifies the End- User when a previously busy station becomes idle and then the End- User can redial that station	Require Automatic Callback system feature. Automatic Callback is not compatible with Call Return	\$0.00	\$0.25	N/A	Yes	No	Required
3	Transfer Recall	1BT++	Line	Enables a transferred call to automatically be recalled to the transferring station if not answered in a predefined number of seconds	Blind Transfer with Recall Identification allows you to transfer a call to another party without waiting for that party to answer	\$5.00	\$3.50	N/A	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office	e Exchange Se	rvicesand	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
4	Busy Call Forwarding	E6G++	Line	Automatically re- routes calls to another station or voice mail box as designated by the End-User when the line is busy	Forwarding to International Direct Distance Dial is not allowed. Call Waiting and this feature are mutually exclusive	N/A	\$0.07	N/A	Yes	No	Required
5	Call Forward Ring No Answer	E9G++	Line	Forwards calls to a number designed by the End-User after a selected number of rings	Forwarding to International Direct Distance Dial is not allowed. Call Waiting and this feature are mutually exclusive	N/A	\$0.07	N/A	Yes	No	Required
6	Custom Call Forward - Ring No Answer	E5G++	Line	Allows End-Users to program Call Forward busy line and/or don't answer from their own station	Forwarding to International Direct Distance Dial is not allowed. Call Waiting, Call Forward Limited and Call Forward Unlimited and this feature are mutually exclusive	N/A	\$0.25	N/A	Yes	No	Required
7	Call Park	DMSCP	Line	Allows the End-User to park a call on another station number and retrieve it from any station		N/A	\$0.50	N/A	Yes	No	Required
8	Call Pickup Group Feature	E3N	Line	Allows the End-User to answer any ringing phone in their designated	Requires Call Pick-up Line	N/A	\$5.00	N/A	Yes	No	Required

Table	2 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				group, from their station									
9	Callback	CALRT	Line	Calls back the last incoming call	not available on- Electronic Business Sets (EBS) (USOC RXC++),- EBS Virtual Directory Numbers (USOC VDP),- Centrex ISDN (USOC SDN++),- Centrex ISDN Secondary Number Appearances	\$7.00	\$0.25	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
10	Call Screen	CALBL	Line	Allows the End-User to route up to ten (10) Customer designated numbers directly to a prerecorded announcement	not available on- Centrex ISDN (USOC SDN++),- Centrex ISDN Secondary Number Appearances, (USOCs SAVH+ & SEDN+)	\$7.00	\$0.50	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
11	Call Trace	CLRTR	Occurren ce	Allows the End-User to alert the authorities with useful information when receiving threatening or harassing calls	not available on- Centrex ISDN (USOC SDN++),- Centrex ISDN Secondary Number Appearances, (USOCs SAVH+ & SEDN+)	\$7.00	\$0.35	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
12	Call Waiting	E6CCS	Line	Notifies the End- User of an incoming call when on another call	Call Waiting when selected takes precedence over Call Forward Busy and Call Forward Don't	N/A	\$0.10	N/A	Yes	No	Required		

Table	ble 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
					Answer. Call Forward Variable takes precedence over Call Waiting. Call Waiting will not be activated if the called station is dialing or has activated Call Hold. Waited calls cannot be answered using Call Pickup. Controller of a 6 port conference cannot receive a waited call.								
13	Caller ID	CAL1D	Line	Displays the incoming callers' phone number on Caller ID compatible Equipment	Display equipment is required and must be purchased separately.	N/A	\$0.50	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
14	Hot Line	HHCCD	Line	Automatically establishes connection to a predetermined number when the End-User goes off hook	Speed Calling, Call-Forwarding, and Call Pickup and this feature are mutually exclusive.	N/A	\$0.25	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
15	Call Pickup with Barge In	DMABG	Line	When the system is equipped with the Barge In option, stations that attempt to pick up a call, which has already been answered, will join the existing connection. Other parties on the call	Requires Directed Call Pickup group feature	N/A	\$0.12	N/A	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office	e Exchange Se	rvices and	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				are alerted by burst of tone							
16	Make Set Busy	DMSSB	Line	Permits End-User to make a station line busy to incoming calls	This feature takes precedence over Call Waiting, Executive Busy Override and Call Forward.	N/A	\$0.10	N/A	Yes	No	Required
17	Distinctive Ringing	RNGPR	Line	Allows the End-User to program the phone to recognized calls from up to ten (10) specific numbers. A special ring is heard when one (1) of those numbers calls		N/A	\$0.50	N/A	Yes	No	Required
18	Camp-On	DLGRP	Line	Completes a busy called number as soon as the designated number becomes free	This feature cannot be activated on calls to: 800/888 lines, 900, Service Codes (411, 611, 811, 911), Operator Assistance or Tie Lines	N/A	\$0.75	N/A	Yes	No	Required
19	Select Call Forwarding	SCF	Line	Allows the End-User to select up to ten (10) incoming numbers to be forwarded to another number	SCF takes precedence over: Call Forwarding- Variable, Call Forwarding-Busy, Call Forwarding- Don't Answer, Call Forwarding- Splits Busy, Call Forwarding-Splits Don't Answer, Call Forwarding-	N/A	\$0.50	N/A	Yes	No	Required

Table	e 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
					Customer Programmable								
Table	18.2.4.1.b - Central Off	ice Exchange S	Services an	d Features			-						
20	Analog Shared Directory Number	ASDN+	Line appeara nce	An additional appearance of a Centrex Basic (analog) Primary number on an ISDN set in the same Centrex system. Same number can appear on up to 7 additional sets (for a maximum of 8 appearances, system wide).	ISDN only. 5ESS-rules: Treatment code is the same wherever that number appears.	\$5.00	\$0.50	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
21	Deluxe Auto Route Selection	ASH	system	System feature, common equipment. Permits aggregation of internal and outgoing call placement for optimization of network facilities.	One required per access code.	\$3,885.00	\$3.50	\$94.99	Yes	No	Required		
22	Authorization Code To Access Common Equipment	ATZCD	system	DISA Authorization codes common equipment—each system Any Centrex system feature that uses an access code can be accessed via DISA Examples: DDD calls to #s outside the Centrex system, Flexible Route Selection, Direct Digital Interface (DDI), Tie Lines.	Authorization Code dialing timeouts can be directed to an attendant console if the system is equipped. Requires Direct Inward System Access (DISA).	\$332.47	\$5.50	\$332.47	Yes	No	Required		

Table	e 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
23	Area Wide Centrex	AWCX3	system	Links multi-location, inter-exchange, intra-LATA Centrex business systems into a common Centrex business system. Provides an abbreviated statewide dialing plan via AIN software capabilities. Suppresses usage charges for inter-Centrex, intra-LATA voice calls ("On-Net") between participating customer's AWC locations. Provides broadened Carrier Select (optional) and Route Select (optional) decision points to include: NPA/NNX , Specific Date, Percentage Allocation, Current Time of Day, Day of Week. Custom Virtual Network (CVN) not required	Centrex required on originating telephone numbers. Central office must have: SS7 technology and Advanced Intelligent Network (AIN) platform. Originating Number must be AT&T Centrex. Terminating number may be other than AT&T Centrex for Off-Net 1 or Off-Net 2 calling. If subscription to AWC is required in a single Centrex common block that serves one or more physical locations (based upon service address), all Centrex stations in at least one of locations must subscribe to AWC feature. Requires minimum of two BTNs (one must be a Centrex #): Must be for same customer and no vacant access codes. Verify no	\$8.00	\$1.95	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
					code conflicts with dialing plan access code. Requires standard dialing plan no ASUM 9							
24	Area Wide Centrex Modification charge- less than 15 lines	AWCX5	change	Add/change dialing plan-less than 15 lines		\$5.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	
25	Area Wide Centrex Modification charge- more than 15 lines	AWCXC	change	Area Wide Centrex Modification ,15 lines or more		\$75.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	
26	Centrex IS Basic Package	BAPKG	Line	ISDN service for Centrex line Package includes any combination of Voice, Data and/or Alternate Voice/data on either/ both B channels ISDN only. Requires a Centrex ISDN Primary Station Line, an access facility and trunking includes: • Channel Features • Incoming Call Line Identification • Outgoing Call Line Identification • Time and Date Display • Call Review • ISDN Group Intercom • Privacy • Calling Number ID		\$150.00	\$16.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	e 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				Block • Multiple Call Appearances • Shared Directory Number • Speed Call Short • Access for Two Logical Devices with Primary Directory Numbers • Semi Restricted Line (Originating and Terminating) • Fully Restricted Line (Originating and Terminating) • Hunting									
27	Distinct Ring & Call Wtg Tone	BRT	Line	Provides station users the ability to determine the source of an incoming call by using a unique ringing pattern determined by switch	Allows station user to determine the source of an incoming call by the pattern of audible ring or Call Waiting tone	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
28	Station Controlled Conf per System	CCS	system	Allows the user to establish a conference call of up to 30 conferees including the originator.	requires CCSLG (line feature)	\$185.00	\$100.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
29	Station Controlled Conference call per line	CCSLG	Line	Allows the user to establish a conference call of up to 30 conferees including the originator.	requires CCSLG (system feature)	\$16.15	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
30	Directed Call Park	CPARK	Line	Allows a user to hold a call on one Centrex line and pick up that call from another Centrex line.		\$0.00	\$0.75	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
31	Direct Digital Interface	DDA++	interface	Direct Digital Interface transport facility termination (++ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID variation in the ++ characters)	Requires DS1	\$1,000.00	\$320.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
32	Account Codes - Non- Verified	CMDSY	Line	Allows a Centrex station user to enter user selected identification number after dialing a telephone number outside the Centrex system	Requires Line feature. ETS Authorization Codes and Customer Dialed Account Recording (CDAR) are not compatible with Account Codes	\$14.25	\$7.60	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
33	Account Codes- Package A	DGACA	Line	The station user is prompted for, and required to, enter a predetermined account code. The switch will verify the account code entry prior to call completion. If the code is not valid, then the outgoing call is denied.	Option 1: 50 three digit codes	\$19.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
34	Account Codes- Package B	DGACB	Line	The station user is prompted for, and required to, enter a	option 2: 50 four digit codes	\$19.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	le 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				predetermined account code. The switch will verify the account code entry prior to call completion. If the code is not valid, then the outgoing call is denied.									
35	Account Codes- Package C	DGACC	Line	The station user is prompted for, and required to, enter a predetermined account code. The switch will verify the account code entry prior to call completion. If the code is not valid, then the outgoing call is denied.	option 3: 100 four digit codes	\$19.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
36	Account Codes- Package D	DGACD	Line	The station user is prompted for, and required to, enter a predetermined account code. The switch will verify the account code entry prior to call completion. If the code is not valid, then the outgoing call is denied.	option 4: 200 four digit codes	\$19.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
37	Customized Account Codes	DGACE	Line	The station user is prompted for, and required to, enter a predetermined account code. The switch will verify the	Customized codes: more than 200 codes, wants to choose own codes, or are on DMS 100 switch	\$23.75	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	le 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				account code entry prior to call completion. If the code is not valid, then the outgoing call is denied.	and want account codes on more than one treatment code. Charged per 50 customized codes								
38	Directed Call Pick-up	DMA1E	Line	A station user may answer calls directed to any other station line in the Centrex system by dialing the unique answer code and the number of the station to be answered. Line feature	The station picking up the call and the station whose calls are to be picked up must be in the same Centrex group. With Directed Call Pickup, the call pickup group may be the entire Centrex system. The number of primary station lines in a call pickup group is generally limited by the audible or visual facilities used to provide suitable identification of the primary station line that is ringing.	\$0.00	\$0.15	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
39	Six Port Conference Calling	DMS6P	system	Allows the user to establish a conference call of up to 6 conferees (including the originator).		\$0.00	\$0.05	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
40	Centrex Auto AnswerBack Feature	DMSAA	Line	Incoming calls to the Centrex EBS are automatically answered after four seconds and placed on user speaker phone-EBS Only	Requires a hands-free EBS or MBS set. Call Forward - Don't Answer and this feature are mutually exclusive. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
41	Automatic Dial	DMSAD	Line	Allows user to program and call frequently called numbers by depressing a single key. EBS only	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$0.00	\$0.15	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
42	Centrex Direct Connect	DMSAL	Line	Automatically establishes connection to a predetermined number when the user goes off hook.		\$0.00	\$0.25	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
43	Executive Busy Override Exempt	DMSBR	Line	Station equipped with this feature cannot be barged in on by a station using Executive Busy Override	Executive Busy Override Exempt cannot be assigned to stations in a hunt group	\$4.75	\$0.47	\$28.50	Yes	No	Required		
44	Direct Inward System Access	DMSDS	system	Permits selected callers to dial into a Centrex system and gain access to system's network facilities and features without assistance from an attendant. A DISA directory number is a 7 digit number	DISA directory number can be associated with an 800 number. DISA Authorization codes are required. Only one transaction at a time per DISA access is allowed. Once a	\$261.23	\$2.50	\$261.23	Yes	No	Required		

Table	lle 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary			
				from the Centrex number range.	transaction is completed, caller must hang up and dial DISA number again.									
45	Executive Busy Override	DMSEB	Line	Permits a station End-User to interrupt on a station that has a call in progress. Parties engaged in conversation hear a warning tone before a new caller joins their conversation.	This feature is not compatible with Hunting and Call Waiting. This feature cannot be activated on a three-way call, call transfer or on calls forwarded by Call Forward.	\$0.00	\$0.25	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
46	Group Intercom	DMSGC	Line	Enables station user to Call another member of a pre- designated group using 1, 2, 3, or 4 digit code from a group intercom key		\$0.00	\$2.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
47	Last Number Redial	DMSLR	Line	Enables a user to automatically redial the last called number.		\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
48	Network Speed Calling	DMSNS	Line	Allows Centrex station access to common speed call list of frequently dialed numbers		\$0.00	\$0.75	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
49	Preset Conference	DMSPC	Line	Enables station users to establish conference call with up to 25 preselected conferees by dialing a specific	While on the Preset Conference Call the following features are disabled: Call Waiting, Three-	\$0.00	\$1.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvices and	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				conference telephone number	way Calling and Executive Busy Override						
50	Privacy Release	DMSPR	Line	Allows MADN members to establish conference between other members of the MADN group by releasing the privacy the Directory Number (DN).	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.25	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required
51	DMS100 Intercom Clg Feature	DMSTC	Line	Allows user to directly terminate on a pre-designated key on another EBS set by pressing the DMSTC key	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
52	Time and Date Display	DMSTD	Line	Displays current time and date on an EBS set.	EBS only. Requires set with display. DMS-100 switch only.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
53	Directed Call Pick-up Group	DPG	Line	A station user may answer calls directed to any other station line in the Centrex system by dialing the unique answer code and the number of the station to be answered. The station for which calls are to be picked up must be arranged for Directed Call Pickup. Group feature	The station for which calls are to be picked up must be arranged for Directed Call Pickup. The station picking up the call and the station whose calls are to be picked up must be in the same Centrex group. With Directed Call Pickup, the call pickup group may be the entire	\$100.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	ble 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
					Centrex system. The number of primary station lines in a call pickup group is generally limited by the audible or visual facilities used to provide suitable identification of the primary station line that is ringing								
54	Distinctive Ringing system	DRR	system	Signals the source of an incoming call through a distinctive ring, notifying the called party if the call has originated from within or outside the Centrex		\$201.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
55	Direct Station Selection Busy	DSBLF	Line	Allows user to observe busy lamp indication on assigned feature key. User can press feature key to call monitored directory number.	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.35	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
56	Spd Clg Group 30 Code Fixed	E2G	Line	Allows a selected group of users to reach up to 30 preselected numbers by dialing abbreviated codes instead of complete number.	Numbers are coded into the system and require an order to change.	\$4.75	\$0.95	\$28.50	Yes	No	Required		

Table	8.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
57	Speed Clg Fixed Indiv 6 Code	E3G	Line	Allows station user to reach up to 6 preselected numbers by dialing abbreviated codes instead of complete number.	Numbers are coded into the system and require an order to change.	\$4.75	\$0.47	\$28.50	Yes	No	Required		
58	Call Pickup	E3P	Line	Allows a user to answer any ringing phone in their designated group, from their station.	Requires E3N- Call pick up group feature.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
59	Call Hold	EAB	Line	Allows a user to place a call on hold for an unlimited period of time, even on a phone with no hold button	Call Waiting tone will not be presented when the in progress call has been placed on Call Hold	\$0.00	\$0.08	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
60	CFW Variable Facility Station	EAP	system	Allows users to forward calls to other phone lines outside the Centrex common block utilizing private facilities	Requires EAY system feature	\$0.00	\$2.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
61	CFW Variable Limited	EAT	Line	Call Forwarding/ Variable Limited allows user to forward calls to another station within the same Centrex	Allows users to forward calls to other phone lines inside the Centrex common block. The user "programs" the telephone with the number calls are to be forwarded to.	\$0.00	\$0.15	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
62	CFW Variable Facility System	EAY	system	System feature that allows users to forward calls to other phone lines outside the Centrex common block utilizing private facilities	Requires EAP line feature	\$696.00	\$60.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
63	Message Service Leave Message	EMWEX	Line	Provides for more than one message waiting key to be assigned to an EBS set. Will provide individual message waiting indicator for separate voice mail boxes	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$30.00	\$0.51	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required		
64	CI Fwdg Variable Unlimited	ESMCS	Line	Allows users to forward calls to other phone lines inside or outside the Centrex common block. The user "programs" the telephone with the number calls are to be forwarded to.	Forwarding to International Direct Distance Dial is not allowed. Call Forward Variable Unlimited, Takes precedence over Call Waiting, Call Forward Busy and Call Forward Don't Answer	\$0.00	\$0.15	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
65	Call Forwarding per Key	ESMPK	Line	Enables each directory number (DN) on an EBS set to be forwarded to a different directory number,	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.35	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
66	Electronic Business Set Call Request	EWB	Line	Provides message- waiting lamp on EBS when: Call Request was	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$30.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	ole 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost per SAAE Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				activated against RXC, a message is waiting in customer's SBC Voice Mailbox, allows user to activate/deactivate a Call Request against another RXC									
67	Station Call Request	EWS	Line	Allows a user to dial a code to activate an audible or visual signal on another station equipped with message waiting. Also works with AT&T Voice Mail	Not available on EBS	\$30.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
68	Facility Restriction Level Route	FRK++	Line	Determines calling areas and station facilities used on each station line and incoming tie line in an ETS tandem (++ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID variation in the ++ characters)		\$4.04	\$0.14	\$4.75	Yes	No	Required		
69	Flexible Route Selection Svc	FRSBA	system	Automatically routes calls over a specified sequence of customer designated routes as available	Requires Flexible Route Selection common equipment	\$810.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAE Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
70	Flexible Route Selection Additional Pattem(s)	FRSPT	system	Additional customer designated routes	Requires Flexible Route Selection common equipment	\$90.00	\$0.00	\$35.00	Yes	No	Required		
71	Call Forward Reason Display	FRWRD	Line	Call-Forward Reason Display gives you and the person calling you the originally-called number, the forwarded-to number, and the reason the call has been forwarded (i.eall calls to that set are forwarded, the call was not answered, or the phone is busy).	Requires Electronic Business set with display.	\$25.00	\$18.00	\$25.00	Yes	No	Required		
72	Fast Transfer	FSTXR	Line	Allows transfer to be completed without pressing the transfer key twice	EBS only DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.15	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
73	System Distinctive Ringing	GDR	system	Provides station users the ability to determine the source of an incoming call by using a unique ringing pattern determined by switch	System Distinctive Ringing is applied to all stations in system and is not provided selectively to individual stations	\$201.00	\$0.50	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
74	Group Intercom-All Calls	GRPAL	Line	Allows member of a group intercom to simultaneously page up to 29 predefined EBS equipped members of the	Requires Group Intercom. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.35	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvicesand	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				same GIC group. EBS only.							
75	Key Short List Group	KSH	Line	Permits incoming calls to hunt up a set of Directory Numbers (DNs) on an EBS/MBS set	Not compatible with Hunting. EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
76	Last Number Redial	LNRDL	Line	EBS set user from any key can redial the last number called from any Directory Number (DN) on the set by pressing a code	EBS Only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.10	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required
77	Meet Me Conf Max 30 Conn	MMELG	system	System feature. Allows a user to conference with up to 30 conferees on a call. Conferees call into a designated number.	Limited to 16 Conference Bridge numbers per Centrex system. At least one member of the conference must be a centrex line in customer group that provides Meet Me conference number	\$185.00	\$115.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
78	Meet Me Conf Max 6 Conn	MMESM	system	System feature. Allows a user to conference with up to 6 conferees on a call. Conferees call into a designated number.	Limited to 16 Conference Bridge numbers per Centrex system. At least one member of the conference must be a centrex line in customer group that provides Meet Me	\$150.00	\$35.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	e 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
					conference number.								
79	Music on Hold System Feature	MUS	system	System feature. Provides music or an announcement on the line as the caller is on hold	Requires a new Music on Hold circuit to customer provided music/announce ment source. Requires Music on Hold-Line (MUSES). Available in DMS-100 and select 5ESS COs	\$210.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
80	Music on Hold Line Feature	MUSES	Line	Provides music or an announcement on the line as the caller is on hold.	Also requires Music on Hold system feature. Line feature must be applied to each line in the Centrex	\$7.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
81	On-Net Calling Capability	ONCSC	Line	Where provisioned On-Net Calling Capability enables a user to dial within the area of the extended Centrex without incurring usage charges. THIS IS NOT THE VIRTUAL AIN BASED AREA WIDE CENTREX PRODUCT	At the option of DTS/STND, On-Net Calling Capability can be provisioned in the following metropolitan areas: Sacramento, San Francisco Bay Area, Los Angeles, and San Diego. May require a number change	\$0.00	\$0.25	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
82	Query Busy Station	QBS	Line	Allows EBS user in a group to monitor	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$8.50	\$1.50	\$8.50	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				busy status of another group member and provides an alert when busy member's EBS is idle.									
83	Remote Access to Call Forwarding	RAFCA	Line	This features allows customer to change "forward to" number, activate, or deactivate Call Forwarding from a remote location	Not available on ISDN or EBS Requires Call Forwarding feature	\$7.00	\$0.10		Yes	No	Required		
84	Originating Line Select	RGLNS	Line	Automatically selects first idle line beginning with the primary DN to place an outgoing call	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.35	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
85	Terminating Line Select	RGTLS	Line	Allows an incoming call to be answered by user lifting handset from the cradle without having to depress a DN key.	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.35	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
86	Repeat Alert	RPTAL	Line	Provides up to 7 warning tones on an active EBS set to alert the user that another incoming call is waiting to be answered.	EBS only. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.10	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
87	Off-Prem Extension Line	RVY++	Line	An extension of a Centrex line working at an address other than the primary line appearance		\$16.15	\$10.45	\$28.50	Yes	No	Required		

Table	8.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
				address (++ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID variation in the ++ characters)								
88	Interior Station Line	RX5	Line	Restricts line from calling outside the centrex	Grandfathered type of service will support existing service only. For new interior stations see RX5AX.	\$25.00	\$1.55	\$25.00	Yes	No	Required	
89	Interior Station Line	RX5AX	Line	Supports intrasystem communication only.	Interior stations are restricted from making and receiving any calls outside of the Centrex system. Optional station features prohibited,	\$25.00	\$1.55	\$25.00	Yes	No	Required	
90	Ctx Feature Line Card D	RXBJ+	Line	DMS100 DATA PATH LINE-LINE CARD TYPE D. (+ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID variation in the + character)	Available on DMS-100 Switch only	\$0.00	\$30.83	\$94.99	Yes	No	Required	
91	Primary Station Centrex-EBS	RXC++	Line	Primary Station Line terminating on a Type C line card to support Electronic Business Sets (EBS). (++ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID	Customer premises within 15,000 feet from serving Central Office (CO) or if premises is over 15,000 feet CO must have Pair Gain cards	\$0.00	\$1.65	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost par SAAE Delegation Paguired or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				variation in the ++ characters)	available to provide service. Available on DMS-100 Switch only.								
92	Primary Station w/ Message Waiting	RXE++	Line	Primary Station Line Message Waiting Lamp. (++ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID variation in the ++ characters)	Central office must have type E line cards. Customer must provide compatible premises equipment. Facilities to each customer location require loop qualification. MWLI is NOT compatible with Centrex Management Service (CCRS).	\$0.00	\$8.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
93	Access Advantage Plus Centex Station Line	RXGA1	Line	Centrex primary station lines terminating on AAP HICAP	Requires DS1	\$40.00	\$8.45	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
94	Call Diverting	RXL	Line	Restricts station lines from making calls to specific area codes or prefixes		\$4.75	\$0.52	\$28.50	Yes	No	Required		
95	Tie Line Termination	RXN++	terminati on	Tie Line Termination Application. Tie Lines provide communication between systems (Centrex or PBX) via a voice grade circuit. By using Tie Lines for intra-	Requires voice grade dedicated circuit	\$142.49	\$65.00	\$142.49	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				company calls, Centrex lines are kept free for outgoing or incoming calls (++ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID variation in the ++ characters)									
96	Network Change Charge	NWC	change	Add, (including 9+ treatment codes) change, rearrange or modify Centrex Basic Feature arrangement		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$28.50	Yes	No	Required		
97	Shared Directory Number	SA2A+	Line	An additional appearance of a primary or secondary number on another set in the Centrex system. (Each set has it own primary number. Shared numbers can be added in addition to the primary number assigned for that set.)	ISDN only. 5ESS rules: Treatment code is the same wherever that number appears. Same number can appear on up to 7 additional sets (for a maximum of 8 appearances, systemwide) Multiple appearances can be shared, but the shared location can not have more multiples than the primary. Shared appearances can have: Abbreviated and Delayed Ringing, or	\$0.00	\$0.20	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	ole 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
					Privacy. DMS rules: Can not appear on key 1 of the terminal. (Key 1 is reserved for the primary number.) If the number is shared, it can not have multiple appearances.							
98	Secondary Number	SEDN+	Line	The first appearance of a unique directory number on a CPE that already has a primary number assigned. Sometimes called a "Virtual Directory Number" because it shares the channel with other numbers, but has some attributes of the primary number.	ISDN only. 5ESS rules: Treatment Code is the same as that of the primary number on the same set. PIC code is the same as that of the primary number on the same set. Multiple appearances allowed (i.e. same number can appear up to a maximum of 16 times per set). Can have shared appearances (same number can appear on up to 7 additional, for a maximum of 8 appearances, system wide). If shared, can have Abbreviated and Delayed Ringing, or	\$5.00	\$0.50	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	3.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
					Privacy. Cannot be part of a Multiline Hunt Group. Can have voicemail but cannot have message waiting indicator. DMS rules: Cannot appear on key 1 of the terminal. (Key 1 is reserved for the primary number.) Can have multiple or shared appearances, but not both PIC code can be different from other numbers on same set. Treatment can be different from other numbers on the same set							
99	Calling Name Display	SND	Line	Enables the name of a person placing a call to be displayed on an EBS set.	Requires Calling Name Display Group (SNDSY) May be assigned to a single line or EBS set. Name display can only be viewed on a compatible EBS set display.	\$0.00	\$0.25	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required	
100	Calling Name Display- Group	SNDSY	Line	Enables members of an EBS group to view the name of	Name display can only be viewed on a compatible EBS set display.	\$5.00	\$0.75	\$10.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary			
				the incoming group member's name	Requires Calling Name Display Line (SND) for each member.									
101	Service Connection Six-Way Conf Clg Per System	SWC	system	Allows the user to establish a conference call of up to 6 conferees (including the originator).	Requires line feature (SWCLN)	\$123.49	\$38.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
102	Service Connection Six-Way Conf Clg Per Line	SWCLN	Line	Allows the user to establish a conference call of up to 6 conferees (including the originator).	Requires system feature (SWC)	\$15.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
103	Each Tie Line or Pvl in Route Selection Pattern	UNF	terminati on	Tie line and/or inter- machine trunk termination, each termination	Requires Automatic Route Selection - Electronic Tandem Network, Automatic Alternate Routing, Universal and Automatic Alternate Routing Patterns.	\$0.00	\$0.15	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
104	Route Selection Pattern	UNP	system	System feature, common equipment. Permits alternate choices for routing of calls on Electronic Tandem Network.	Requires Automatic Route Selection - Electronic Tandem Network and Automatic Alternate Routing, Universal	\$30.00	\$0.15	\$75.00	Yes	No	Required			
105	Uniform # Alternate Routing	UNR	system	System feature, common equipment. Permits universal	Requires Automatic Route Selection -	\$7,350.00	\$25.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost por SAAE Delegation Peguirod or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				number, alternative routing on Electronic Tandem Network feature	Electronic Tandem Network								
106	Virtual Directory Number	VDN++	Line	An additional appearance of a primary or virtual directory number. Must be assigned to a key with a lamp on key 2 or above. Can only appear once as a primary virtual directory number. (++ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID variation in the ++ characters)	EBS only. An interior station cannot have a secondary virtual directory number. There cannot be more than 15 appearances of a specific virtual directory number. Cannot be in a hunt group. Requires VDP++. DMS-100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
107	Sectional Billing- Agency Acct	ZZFAG	Line	Allows the user to group individual Centrex lines by agency on a separate bill		\$25.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
108	Pilot Acct Sectional Billing	ZZFPA	Line	Allows the user to group individual Centrex lines by department, agency or work group on a separate bill.		\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
109	Auto Callback Equip Per System	ACY	system	System feature Automatically notifies the user when a previously busy station becomes idle and then optionally enables the user to redial that station.	Requires Automatic Callback line feature. Not compatible with Call Return	\$565.00	\$0.04	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

lalewic	ie rechnology Plocul	ement					Calalog B	Calegory	io Legacy Tei	ecommu	ımcau	ions
Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvicesand	Features								
- 1					t .	L					$\overline{}$	

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
110	Indiv Speed Clg 30 Numbers	SPC3O	Line	Allows station user to program frequently called numbers and call them by dialing abbreviated codes instead of complete number. (30 Numbers)		\$0.00	\$0.50	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
111	Indiv Speed Clg 50 Numbers	SPC5O	Line	Allows station user to program frequently called numbers and call them by dialing abbreviated codes instead of complete number. (50 Numbers)		\$0.00	\$0.50	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
112	Indiv Speed Clg 70 Numbers	SPC7O	Line	Allows station user to program frequently called numbers and call them by dialing abbreviated codes instead of complete number. (70 Numbers)		\$0.00	\$0.50	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
113	Virtual Directory Number-Primary	VDP++	Line	Primary (first) appearance of a number that can receive and place calls, although no cable pair or central office equipment are assigned (++ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID	EBS only. Must be assigned to a key with a lamp on key2 or above. Can only appear once as a primary virtual directory number. DMS- 100 switch only.	\$5.00	\$0.45	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost por SAAE Delogation Required or									
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				variation in the ++ characters)							
114	Call Waiting- Originating	ESZ	Line	Notifies the End- User of an incoming call when on another call	Call Waiting when selected takes precedence over Call Forward Busy and Call Forward Don't Answer. Call Forward Variable takes precedence over Call Waiting. Call Waiting will not be activated if the called station is dialing or has activated Call Hold. Waited calls cannot be answered using Call Pickup. Controller of a 6 port conference cannot receive a waited call.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
115	Call Waiting- Intragroup	E6N	Line	Notifies the End- User of an incoming call when on another call	Call Waiting when selected takes precedence over Call Forward Busy and Call Forward Don't Answer. Call Forward Variable takes precedence over Call Waiting. Call Waiting will not be activated if the called station is dialing or has activated Call	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	e 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
					Hold. Waited calls cannot be answered using Call Pickup. Controller of a 6 port conference cannot receive a waited call.								
116	DPAS System establishment	SEPA3	system	This service provides usage charge-free calling from Centrex phones to Voice DNA phones that are in the same service area. System feature		\$200.00	\$0.00	\$50.00	Yes	No	Required		
117	DPAS Deluxe Dial Plan Option	D6PAD	Line	This service provides usage charge-free calling from Centrex phones to Voice DNA phones that are in the same service area. This service is charged per standard Centrex line.	DPAS is available only to AT&T Centrex customers who currently subscribe to AT&T Centrex service or any new AT&T Centrex subscriber. All stations in a Centrex system dialing plan must be provisioned with the DPAS feature. All innetwork and out-of-network numbers must be the same Customer of Record or	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$50.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	e 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
					legal subsidiary of the Customer of Record. Inter-Centrex calls must remain intra-LATA. Centrex-to-non-Centrex calls must be part of the same LATA as the original Centrex system. Centrex-to-Centrex calls will be two-way capable; Centrex-to-off-network calls will be one way only (i.e., leaving the Centrex system). AT&T must be the intra-LATA carrier (LPIC) for local toll calls when a DPAS call is placed. All other directly dialed, local toll calls will default to the customer's pre-existing LPIC carrier. Calls to an out-of network telephone number in a Rate Center that is different from that of the originating Centrex telephone number are subject to							

Table	e 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost par SAAE Delegation Paguired or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
					usage charges. DPAS feature modifications are subject to a change charge, REATH. DPAS may conflict with the following Centrex features: Automatic Callback, Automatic Recall, Repeat Dialing, Account Codes, Attendant Consoles, and ISDN Data Calls. DPAS service does not allow an Out-of-Network dialer to dial back on an abbreviated basis. Customers that subscribe to DPAS will not incur charges associated with removing incompatible Centrex features. The total count of out-of-network numbers cannot exceed the sum of the number of Centrex stations that were in use when the DPAS feature was established, plus any additions to							

Table	8.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost par SAAE Delegation Paguirod or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
					that number of Centrex stations added to the system(s) at a later date.							
118	DPAS Subsequent change charge	REATH	Per Change	Applies to changes made to DPAS features after initial service establishment	Applies to changes made to DPAS features after initial service establishment	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$50.00	Yes	No	Required	
119	Caller ID Complete Blocking External Calls Only	CNMEX	Line	Blocks caller ID on outgoing external calls only, allowing intra-system calling name & number to be displayed.		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	
120	Telephone Management System	MSC	applicati on	Allows customer to manage Centrex system. Change features, rearrange stations, and customize every phone in office without having to initiate service orders through AT&T.	Initial training provided. Requires computer with internet access.	\$435.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	
121	Make Busy Except Group Intercom	DRRAL	Line	Make Busy except on Group Intercom permits user to maintain a station line busy to incoming calls on phones properly equipped. Station user can place outgoing calls when Make Busy is active.	This feature takes precedence over Call Waiting, Executive Busy Override and Call Forward.	\$0.00	\$0.15	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost per SAAE Delegation Required or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
122	End-User Speed Calling	ESHC6	identifier	Allows station user to program frequently called numbers and call them by dialing abbreviated codes instead of complete number.	ESCH6 8 numbers in 5ESS switch & 10 numbers in DSM switch.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
123	System Speed Calling	ESHC3	identifier	Speed Calling- Expanded Number Group improves your calling efficiency for frequently dialed numbers by allowing you to dial a code for a list of preprogrammed numbers.	Only available in 5ESS Switch Type. 30 Code, per station.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
124	System Speed Calling	SPD3O	identifier	Speed Calling- Expanded Number Group improves your calling efficiency for frequently dialed numbers by allowing you to dial a code for a list of preprogrammed numbers.	Only available in DMS-100 Switch Type. 30 Code, per station.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
125	System Speed Calling	SPD5O	identifier	Speed Calling- Expanded Number Group improves your calling efficiency for frequently dialed numbers by allowing you to dial a code for a list of	50 Code, per station.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	ole 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				preprogrammed numbers.									
126	System Speed Calling	SPD7O	identifier	Speed Calling- Expanded Number Group improves your calling efficiency for frequently dialed numbers by allowing you to dial a code for a list of preprogrammed numbers.	70 Code, per station.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
127	Uniform Call Distribution (UCD) each group	DMSUC	Group	UCD allows incoming calls to a single telephone number, called a listed directory number (LDN), to be distributed to a group of Centrex extensions.	Requires UCD line	\$198.00	\$40.00	\$80.00	Yes	No	Required		
128	Uniform Call Distribution (UCD) each line	DMSCD	Line	UCD allows incoming calls to a single telephone number, called a listed directory number (LDN), to be distributed to a group of Centrex extensions.	Requires DMSUC.	\$40.00	\$0.85	\$40.00	Yes	No	Required		
129	UCD Call Waiting Signal	A66CE	Line	Provides signal for visual and audible indication of delay experienced by a call, which has been waiting in queue the longest. Also known as Queue Status	Requires UCD group & Voice Grade 32 circuit between Central Office and customer premises for each lamp. Requires	\$150.00	\$2.50	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office	3.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
				Lamp. Permits use of up to three lamps to indicate various timing states of delay. Delay times are specified by customer and/or are limited in each switch type.	Customer Provided Equipment (CPE) lamps.							
130	DISA Authorization codes	1HN	identifier	DISA Authorization codes - first 100 codes or fraction thereof.	Requires Direct Inward System Access (DISA).	\$71.24	\$0.00	\$71.24	Yes	No	Required	
131	Flexible Route Selection Common Equipment	ARQES	identifier	Automatically routes calls over a specified sequence of customer designated routes as available.		\$474.96	\$223.23	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	
132	Direct Out	ASUM9	identifier	Provides a dialing plan that allows calls from within the Centrex to be placed to numbers outside the Centrex without dialing an access code.		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	
133	Caller ID Blocking	CNMBK	Line	Complete Blocking with Selective Unblocking. Automatically blocks number delivery on all calls. Station user may deactivate blocking on a per call basis by dialing *82.		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	le 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
134	Direct Inward and Outward Dialing	DDT	identifier	Enhances Call Transfer-All Calls and Universal Call Transfer to let a station user transfer DID calls to a remote number outside of Centrex system. Once transfer leg is established, station user can hang up and call is maintained.		\$189.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
135	Distinctive Ringing DMS Line	DRR++	Each	Provides distinctive ringing on a per line basis. Ringing patterns assigned from a predefined list (++ is a placeholder for multiple product options with ID variation in the ++ characters)	Requires GDR. Available on the DMS switch.	\$0.00	\$0.15	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
136	Hunting	HTG	Occurren ce	Allows incoming calls to search a group of multiple lines in the same exchange, of same class of service, and of the same customer for an idle line.	Not compatible with EBS MADN groups.	\$30.00	\$0.50	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required		
137	Circuit Switched Alternate Voice/Data on a B Channel	LCS1X	Identifier	One of the Bearer services available on B Channel. Provides the users availability to switch	CPE sets must be capable of both voice and data. If user is active on a data call on both	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	le 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost per SAAE Delegation Pequired or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				between voice and data on a call by call basis. Services can be configured like voice or like data.	B Channels, a voice call attempt would be blocked. If CPE configuration is capable of more than two channels at the same time, customer must manage any contention that may arise. ISDN only.								
138	Circuit Switched Voice Services on a B Channel	LCS5X	Identifier	One of the Bearer services available on the B channel. Each voice device requires a unique directory number; however, numbers can be shared from one station to another. Secondary Directory Numbers are also available.	ISDN compatible CPE required. No extension sets are allowed. Analog CPE devices (e.g., answering machines, facsimile machines, etc.) require special adapters or may not be compatible.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
139	Circuit Switched Data Services on a B Channel	LCS6X	Identifier	One of the Bearer services available on B Channel. Can "bond" B Channels to provide greater bandwidth. Centrex-IS voice service with special terminal adapters can receive analog data calls.	ISDN compatible CPE required. No analog modem required. Can only send data to other compatible services: Another Centrex-ISDN station; Customer provided "modem pool" set up for ISDN	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	le 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
					transmission; Switched 56 or 64 service for another vendor or IEC. Data calls can't be sent to analog devices unless using special terminal adapters.								
140	Incoming & Outgoing Call ID	LXO	Each	Provides number identification of both incoming and outgoing calls to CPE sets equipped with display. Available in both Voice and Data services. Two versions available: Primary-call information is only sent to terminal where the called directory number of the set. All-call information is sent to each terminal having directory numbers (i.e., primary as well as shared appearances).	Data - only assign when CPE can use display information. ISDN only	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
141	Additional use of B Channel Primary Directory Number	MADDC	Each	The Centrex ISDN primary number (SDNA+) can be assigned to another B channel device used for data.	Only available with Custom configuration. Not available for National 1	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
					configuration ISDN only.								
142	Music On Hold - System	MUSSY	System	System feature. Provides music or an announcement on the line as the caller is on hold. Doesn't require a new music source.	Requires a Music on Hold circuit to customer provided music/announce ment source. Requires Music on Hold-Line (MUSES)	\$210.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
143	Privacy Release	PRLKY	Identifier	Allows a conference call between shared numbers.	ISDN only. Both Privacy and Privacy Release may be assigned to the same voice terminal; each requires its own key.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
144	B Channel Primary Number	SAVH1	Each	Unique directory numbers for addition B Channel Devices.	ISDN Only. Cannot be a primary number.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
145	Semi or Fully Restricted Line	TGSRF	Identifier	Terminal Group Station Restriction works in conjunction with the Treatment Code assigned to each number. This is a required feature on each B Channel with a unique directory number (either voice or data service). Applies to both Primary and Secondary Directory Numbers. Originating	Restriction levels: must be set for both originating (outgoing) and terminating (incoming) and must not conflict with treatment code.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	ele 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				(outgoing) and terminating (incoming) calls can have any combination of the following restriction levels: U = Unrestricted/ unlimited calling; S = Semi Restricted - calls within									
146	Calling Number ID Block, Call Review, Time & Display	PDDL3	Identifier	Can block your number from showing when making outgoing calls. Displays call related information on active calls or displays feature associated with buttons on set. Time and Date will be displayed on telephone set.	ISDN only. Available in 5ESS. Also known as "inspect" in Vendor documentation.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
147	ISDN Group Intercom	XCMDM	Identifier	Allows user to establish an intercom call.	ISDN only Multiple occurrences are not allowed.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$5.00	Yes	No	Required		
148	Information Services Call Blocking	CL9	Line	Prevent user from dialing 900/976 number.	Only blocks direct dialed calls.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
149	Non Verified Non- Forced Account Codes—Line	CMDNF	Identifier	Allows a Centrex station user to enter user selected identification number after dialing a telephone number outside the Centrex system. User has	Requires system feature. ETS Authorization Codes and Customer Dialed Account Recording (CDAR) are not	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
				the option of entering code.	compatible with Account Codes.							
150	Area Wide Centrex	AWCX4	Identifier	Identifies a non- Centrex station line that is considered to be on-net for Area Wide Centrex. Suppresses On-net calling usage charges.		\$8.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	
151	Package 1000 (Bundled)	CNET1	Identifier	Verizon Centrex: Includes Call Forward, Call Hold, Call Pickup, Call Transfer, Call Waiting, Three Way Calling, Speed Calling, Station-to- Station Dialing, Distinctive Ringing, Last number redial. Features may not be substituted to, deleted from or transferred between packages.	A customer must have a minimum of two station lines (priced separately) which must terminate at one location of the customer and within the serving area of the same Central Office. Must include Package 1000, 2000 or 3000.	\$30.00	\$1.37	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	
152	Package 2000 (Bundled)	CNET2	Identifier	Verizon Centrex: Includes all of the features of Package 1000 plus Automatic Call Back, Call Park, Toll Restriction, Group Speed Call. Features may not be substituted to, deleted from or	A customer must have a minimum of two station lines (priced separately) which must terminate at one location of the customer and within the serving area of the same Central Office.	\$30.00	\$2.97	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	le 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary			
				transferred between packages	Must include Package 1000, 2000 or 3000.									
152	Package 3000 (Bundled)	CNET3	Identifier	Verizon Centrex: Includes all of the features of Package 2000 plus 30 Speed call individual, ARS/FRS, Remote Access to Features and Message Detail Recording. Features may not be substituted to, deleted from or transferred between packages.	A customer must have a minimum of two station lines (priced separately) which must terminate at one location of the customer and within the serving area of the same Central Office. Must include Package 1000, 2000 or 3000.	\$30.00	\$3.72	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
154	Centrex in Verizon Territory CLASS	GECAA	Identifier	Includes Automatic Busy Redial, Automatic Call Retum, Call Block, Special Call Acceptance, Special Call Forwarding and Special Call Waiting.	Must also subscribe to at least Feature Package 1000.	\$0.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
155	Station to Station Dialing	GECFB	Identifier	Allows a station user to dial another station within the same Centrex in Verizon Territory customer group using just the last four digits of the telephone number.	Available in Feature Package 1000, 2000 and 3000.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
156	Toll Restriction	GECFC	Identifier	Disallows the dialing of long distance calls.	Available in Feature Package 2000 and 3000.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			

Table	e 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
157	Automatic Route Selection /Flexible Route Selection (ARS/FRS)	GECFD	Identifier	Automatically selects the most economical route to a destination. Feature Package 3000 includes 3-digit routing to selectively route calls over two or more routes with a capacity of 8 patterns per customer group.	Available in Feature Package 3000.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
158	Remote Access to Features	GECFE	Identifier	Allows a user who is away from the office to dial directly into the Centrex in Verizon Territory system and gain complete access to Centrex in Verizon Territory system facilities and outgoing trunk circuits.	Available in Feature Package 3000. The user must have a security access code.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
159	Message Detail Recording	GECFF	Identifier	Provides a record of originating messages.	Available in Feature Package 3000. It is not a source for billing detail.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
160	Automatic Busy Redial	GECFG	Identifier	An arrangement which permits the customer to redial automatically the last number dialed.	Available as part of Centrex in Verizon Territory CLASS package.	\$0.00	\$0.75	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
161	Paging Interface	GECFH	Identifier	Allows Centrex in Verizon Territory stations to access customer provided loudspeaker paging	Paging Interface does not provide facility path from paging source.	\$105.00	\$26.85	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	ble 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary			
				equipment located throughout the customer's premises.										
162	Customer Moves and Changes: 1-100	GECF1	Identifier	Customer Moves and Changes provides customers with the ability to prepare, schedule, and implement feature changes and configurations from a computer terminal located on the customer's premises.	Available functions are Service Option Information Changes, Activation/Deactiv ation of Features, Telephone Number Swaps, Reports. Supports 1 - 100 lines. Requires customer provided computer terminal	\$190.00	\$85.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required			
163	Customer Moves and Changes: 101 - 200 lines	GECFJ	Identifier	Customer Moves and Changes provides customers with the ability to prepare, schedule, and implement feature changes and configurations from a computer terminal located on the customer's premises.	Available functions are Service Option Information Changes, Activation/Deactiv ation of Features, Telephone Number Swaps, Reports. Supports 101 - 200 lines. Requires customer provided computer terminal	\$350.00	\$140.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required			
164	Customer Moves and Changes: 201 - 500 lines	GECFK	Identifier	Customer Moves and Changes provides customers with the ability to	Available functions are Service Option Information	\$800.00	\$200.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required			

Table	ble 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features Cost par SAAE Delegation Paguirod or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				prepare, schedule, and implement feature changes and configurations from a computer terminal located on the customer's premises.	Changes, Activation/Deactiv ation of Features, Telephone Number Swaps, Reports. Supports 200 - 500 lines. Requires customer provided computer terminal								
165	Customer Moves and Changes: 501 - 1500 lines	GECFL	Identifier	Customer Moves and Changes provides customers with the ability to prepare, schedule, and implement feature changes and configurations from a computer terminal located on the customer's premises.	Available functions are Service Option Information Changes, Activation/Deactiv ation of Features, Telephone Number Swaps, Reports. Supports 500 - 1500 lines. Requires customer provided computer terminal	\$1,850.00	\$300.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required		
166	Customer Moves and Changes over 1500 lines	GECFM	Identifier	Customer Moves and Changes provides customers with the ability to prepare, schedule, and implement feature changes and configurations from a computer terminal located on the customer's premises.	Available functions are Service Option Information Changes, Activation/Deactivation of Features, Telephone Number Swaps, Reports. Supports 1500+ lines. Requires	\$3,500.00	\$400.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvicesand	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					customer provided computer terminal						
167	Music on Hold Interface	GECFN	Identifier	Provides access to a customer provided music source for use with Call Hold, Call Park, Call Transfer, Three Way Calling, Off-Hook Queuing and ACD/UCD.	Music on Hold interface does not provide facility path from music source.	\$210.00	\$5.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
168	ARS/FRS Programming	GECFR	Identifier	Each set-up or change		\$350.00	\$0.00	\$350.00	Yes	No	Required
169	Automatic Route Selection Upgrade - 6 digit routing	GECFQ	Identifier	6 digit routing to selectively route over 2 or more routes within and NPA.		\$50.00	\$13.00	\$35.00	Yes	No	Required
170	Automatic Route Selection Upgrade - 32 pattems	GECFO	Identifier	Customers wishing to increase their capacity to 32 patterns per customer group may do so with this option.		\$100.00	\$21.00	\$35.00	Yes	No	Required
171	Automatic Route Selection Upgrade - 64 pattems	GECFP	Identifier	Customers wishing to increase their capacity to 64 patterns per customer group may do so with this option.		\$200.00	\$30.00	\$35.00	Yes	No	Required
172	Trunk Queuing	GECFS	Identifier	Allows a call to wait for a facility in a private facility group to become idle on a		\$5.00	\$1.50	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	Table 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				first-come first- served basis.							
173	Attendant Position Interface	GECFT	Identifier	Service features are not available when attendant's positions are provided by the customer	May not be available from some switching equipment	\$200.00	\$200.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
174	Toll Free Termination	GECFU	Identifier	Provides in-coming termination capability.		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
175	Assume "9"	GECFV	Identifier	Eliminates the need to dial the digit 9 before accessing telephone numbers outside of the Centrex in Verizon Territory customer group.	May cause delays in call processing or misdirected calls.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
176	Recorded Announcement	GECFW	Identifier	Allows incoming calls to a multiline hunt group to activate a delay announcement where answer supervision is returned to the calling party and first announcement is connected.	Customer may specify wording of announcement. This feature can also be used with ACD/UCD and trunk queuing.	\$150.00	\$13.00	\$35.00	Yes	No	Required
177	Flexible Route Selection (FRS) - 3 digit / 8 patterns	GECEA	Identifier	Automatically direct outgoing station calls to dedicated trunk groups which have been arranged a first through fourth choice order to provide most	3 digit Routing to selectively route calls over two or more routes for a capacity of 8 patterns	\$810.00	\$15.00	\$35.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvices and	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				preferred available route.							
178	Flexible Route Selection (FRS) - 3 digit / 32 patterns	GECEB	Identifier	3 digit Routing to selectively route calls over two or more routes for a capacity of 32 patterns.		\$80.74	\$1.90	\$35.00	Yes	No	Required
179	Flexible Route Selection (FRS) - 3 digit / 64 patterns	GECEC	Identifier	3 digit Routing to selectively route calls over two or more routes for a capacity of 64 patterns.		\$80.74	\$1.90	\$35.00	Yes	No	Required
180	Flexible Route Selection (FRS) - 6 digit	GECED	Identifier	Flexible Route Selection (FRS) - 6 digit		\$50.00	\$13.75	\$35.00	Yes	No	Required
181	FRS common equipment	GECEE	Identifier	FRS common equipment	Per customer group required for FRS	\$474.96	\$223.23	\$474.96	Yes	No	Required
182	FRS programming	GECEF	Identifier	FRS programming		\$200.00	\$200.00	\$200.00	Yes	No	Required
183	MDR common equipment	GECFY	Identifier	MDR common equipment	Per customer group required for Message Detail Recording (MDR).	\$100.00	\$81.25	\$100.00	Yes	No	Required
184	Message Detail Recording (MDR)	GECFX	Identifier	Provides a record of originating messages.	It is not a source for billing detail.	\$2.00	\$0.30	\$2.00	Yes	No	Required
185	Authorization Codes	GECDA	Identifier	Overrides the calling restrictions placed on a particular line.	Per group of 10.	\$14.25	\$7.60	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
186	Code Call Access	GECDB	Identifier	Provides access to code calling signaling devices		\$100.00	\$25.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvicesand	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
187	Dictation Access Control	GECDC	Identifier	Provides station access to dictation equipment		\$100.00	\$25.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
188	Preferential Hunting	GECDD	Identifier	Assigns hunting for an individual group of hunt group members to a pilot number of another circular hunt group.	Requires one or more hunt groups.	\$30.00	\$0.50	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
189	Priority Queuing	GECDE	Identifier	Provides two levels of priority in the handling of queued calls.		\$25.00	\$1.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
190	Stop Hunt	GECDF	Identifier	Uses a code to stop the hunting process when a particular line is reached in a hunting sequence.	Requires one or more hunt groups. May require additional hardware.	\$25.00	\$1.80	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
191	Terminal Make Busy	GECDG	Identifier	Allows a station or group of stations to appear busy to incoming calls.	Requires one or more hunt groups.	\$0.00	\$0.10	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
192	Time of Day Routing	GECDH	Identifier	Provides for route selection based on the most economical path for a particular time of day or day of week.		\$560.00	\$10.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
193	Exchange and Toll Message Diverting - per pattern	GECD1	Identifier	Allows establishment of toll diverting pattern by pre-selecting approved prefix (NXX) or area code (NPA) while restricting calls to all other locations.	Also need NXX and/or NPA	\$4.75	\$0.52	\$50.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvices and	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
194	Exchange and Toll Message Diverting - per 10 NXX	GECDJ	Identifier	Allows establishment of toll diverting pattern by pre-selecting approved prefix while restricting calls to all other locations.	Also need per pattern.	\$195.00	\$35.00	\$50.00	Yes	No	Required
195	Exchange and Toll Message Diverting - per 10 NPA	GECDK	Identifier	Allows establishment of toll diverting pattern by pre-selecting approved area code while restricting calls to all other locations.	Also need per pattern.	\$225.00	\$50.00	\$50.00	Yes	No	Required
196	Direct Connect Service	GECDL	Identifier	Allows a station line to automatically place a call to a pre- assigned called number when the station user goes off hook		\$4.75	\$0.95	\$50.00	Yes	No	Required
197	Proprietary Interface	GECDM	Identifier	A digital network interface used to integrate digital terminal equipment with GTD-5 or DMS-100 central office switching equipment.	Each digital telephone connected to a Centrex in Verizon Territory station line requires a Proprietary Interface.	\$0.00	\$5.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
198	Pseudo Number	GECDN	Identifier	A software number which has the characteristics of a basic exchange access line.		\$0.00	\$6.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required

Catalog B: Category 18 Legacy Telecommunications	;

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features									
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
199	Dedicated Instant Call Accounting (ICA) per system	GECDO	Identifier	Provides the customer with records of calls originating from Centrex in Verizon Territory stations. The customer's call records are continually transmitted from the central office to the customer's premises equipment.	Requires a dedicated private line connection. Records will not be provided for incoming calls or station to station (intercom calls). Customer will be required to provide compatible CPE to process call detail records. Customer provided dial modem is required. Not available in all areas.	\$2,000.00	\$1,000.00	\$2,000.0 0	Yes	No	Required
200	Dial-Up ICA per system	GECDP	Identifier	The customer, using CPE, initiates a download request to the central office processor in order to retrieve the call records.	Records will not be provided for incoming calls, or station-to-station (intercom) calls. Customer will be required to provide compatible CPE to process call detail records. Customer provided dial modem is required. Not available in all areas. A Centrex Verizon line is required. To prevent possible risk of lost call	\$1,000.00	\$500.00	\$1,000.0 0	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvices and	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					records data, Dial-Up customers need to access their call records at least every seven days						
201	Call Tracing Service	GECDQ	Identifier	Allows a customer to automatically activate a trace record of the last incoming call.	Requires CLASS package.	\$0.00	\$6.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
202	VIP Alert	GECDR	Identifier	Allows a customer to program up to 12 telephone numbers of selected callers, enabling the customer to distinguish certain incoming calls from others by distinctive ringing.	If a customer also subscribes to Call Waiting, calls from the selected numbers will have a special Call Waiting tone.	\$0.00	\$4.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
203	Calling Number Identification (CNID) Service - 2-25 lines	GECDS	Identifier	Provides for the display of an incoming telephone number.	Customer must provide own display device. Must be in an appropriately equipped central office.	\$5.70	\$7.12	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
204	Calling Number Identification (CNID) Service - 26-50 lines	GECDT	Identifier	Provides for the display of an incoming telephone number.	Customer must provide own display device. Must be in an appropriately equipped central office.	\$5.70	\$7.12	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	Table 18.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
205	Calling Number Identification (CNID) Service - over 51 lines	GECDU	Identifier	Provides for the display of an incoming telephone number.	Customer must provide own display device. Must be in an appropriately equipped central office.	\$5.70	\$7.12	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
206	Selective Blocking - Per Call	GECDV	Identifier	Provides per-call blocking in exchanges where CNID is offered.	Does not prevent delivery of number when services that utilize Automatic Number Identification (ANI) are called.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
207	Database Changes - Minor Software	GECDY	Identifier	Database Changes - Minor Software		\$25.00	\$0.00	\$25.00	Yes	No	Required
208	Database Changes - Routine Software	GECDX	Identifier	Database Changes - Routine Software		\$50.00	\$0.00	\$50.00	Yes	No	Required
209	Database Changes - Major Software	GECDW	Identifier	Database Changes - Major Software		\$100.00	\$0.00	\$100.00	Yes	No	Required
210	Location Code/Extension Dialing Plan: 3-25 lines	GECGA	Identifier	Utilizes a unique location code for each site along with an extension number. Individual intercom#s have two components: A 1 to 3 digit location code. 1 to 6 digits corresponding to a portion of the customer's local North American Numbering Plan #.	Extension Dialing utilizes intercom #s consisting of a portion of the # associated with the individual line. This dialing plan allows for a simple intercom number based on part of the assigned NANP number. In addition to	\$8.00	\$1.95	Location: \$65.00; 1st 25 #'s: \$55.00; Add #'s: \$1.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	2.2.4.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features									
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					Centrex Primary Line Station.						
211	Location Code/Extension Dialing Plan: 26-50 lines	GECGB	Identifier	See Location Code/Extension Dialing Plan 3-25 Lines	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$195.00	\$35.00	Location: \$65.00; 1st 25 #'s: \$55.00; Add #'s: \$1.00	Yes	No	Required
212	Location Code/Extension Dialing Plan: 51-100 lines	GECGC	Identifier	See Location Code/Extension Dialing Plan 3-25 Lines	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$225.00	\$50.00	Location: \$65.00; 1st 25 #'s: \$55.00; Add #'s: \$1.00	Yes	No	Required
213	Location Code/Extension Dialing Plan: 101+ lines	GECGD	Identifier	See Location Code/Extension Dialing Plan 3-25 Lines	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$270.00	\$75.00	Location: \$65.00; 1st 25 #'s: \$55.00; Add #'s: \$1.00	Yes	No	Required
214	Portable Extension Dialing Plan: 2-25 lines	GECGE	Identifier	Allows the selection of any intercom number scheme, with individual intercom numbers transferable between customer locations.	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$170.00	\$25.00	Location: \$65.00; 1st 25 #'s: \$55.00; Add #'s: \$1.00	Yes	No	Required
215	Portable Extension Dialing Plan: 26-50 lines	GECGF	Identifier	Allows the selection of any intercom number scheme, with individual intercom numbers transferable	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$195.00	\$35.00	Location: \$65.00; 1st 25 #'s: \$55.00; Add #'s: \$1.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvicesand	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				between customer locations.							
216	Portable Extension Dialing Plan: 51-100 lines	GECGG	Identifier	Allows the selection of any intercom number scheme, with individual intercom numbers transferable between customer locations.	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$225.00	\$50.00	Location: \$65.00; 1st 25 #'s: \$55.00; Add #'s: \$1.00	Yes	No	Required
217	Portable Extension Dialing Plan: 101+ lines	GECGH	Identifier	Allows the selection of any intercom number scheme, with individual intercom numbers transferable between customer locations.	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$270.00	\$75.00	Location: \$65.00; 1st 25 #'s: \$55.00; Add #'s: \$1.00	Yes	No	Required
218	Intercom Calling: 2-25 lines	GECG1	Identifier	Interlocation intercom uses the public switched network instead of a dedicated private line network to complete calls between Centrex in Verizon Territory locations.	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$0.00	\$2.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
219	Intercom Calling: 26- 50 lines	GECGJ	Identifier	Interlocation intercom uses the public switched network instead of a dedicated private line network to complete calls between Centrex in Verizon Territory locations.	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$0.00	\$2.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.4.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvicesand	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
220	Intercom Calling: 51- 100 lines	GECGK	Identifier	Interlocation intercom uses the public switched network instead of a dedicated private line network to complete calls between Centrex in Verizon Territory locations.	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$0.00	\$2.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
221	Intercom Calling: 101+ lines	GECGL	Identifier	Interlocation intercom uses the public switched network instead of a dedicated private line network to complete calls between Centrex in Verizon Territory locations.	In addition to Centrex Primary Line Station.	\$0.00	\$2.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table 18.2.5.1 - Central Office Trunk Services and Features

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by Contractor: The AT&T Private Branch Exchange (PBX) trunks connect a customer's private switch or other equipment to the AT&T central office (CO).

Geographic Availability: Throughout the AT&T California service area.

Service Limitations and Restrictions: Subject to availability of facilities. Some features, if noted in Feature Restrictions, are available only on certain CO switch types. Switch types present in the serving Central Office for a given location can be determined by contacting AT&T or though publicly available data sources.

State Associated Administrative Fee (SAAF) Charge: Services identified below with "Yes" in the SAAF Applied column will have a 2.5% fee applied to the Monthly Recurring Charge or usage. Charges below do not include the SAAF. The SAAF will appear as a separate line on the customer's invoice.

Table 18.2.5.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
Table 18.2.5.1.a - Central Office Exchange Services and Features											
1	Two-Way Trunks- Basic	BMS	trunk	Provides incoming and outgoing call capability. Transmission loss will not exceed more than 8.0 db.	First trunk. Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or coterminate with residence service. PBX trunks are not available as four wire service.	\$70.75	\$9.00	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
2	Two-Way Trunks- Assured	ТМВ	trunk	Provides incoming and outgoing call capability. Transmission loss will not exceed more than 5.5 db.	First trunk. Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or coterminate with residence service. PBX trunks are not available as four wire service.	\$85.00	\$10.00	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
3	Out Only Trunks - Basic	ВМ3	trunk	Provides outgoing capability only. Transmission loss	Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or co-	\$70.75	\$9.00	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required

Table	Table 18.2.5.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				will not exceed more than 8.0 db.	terminate with residence service. PBX trunks are not available as four wire service.						
4	Out Only Trunks - Assured	TM3	trunk	Provides outgoing capability only. Transmission loss will not exceed more than 5.5 db.	Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or coterminate with residence service. PBX trunks are not available as four wire service.	\$85.00	\$10.00	\$24.00	Yes	No	Required
5	In Only Trunks - Basic	BM4	trunk	Provides incoming service only. Transmission loss will not exceed 8.0 db.	Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or coterminate with residence service. PBX trunks are not available as four wire service.	\$70.75	\$9.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
6	In Only Trunks - Assured	TM4	trunk	Provide incoming service only. Transmission loss will not exceed 5.5 db.	Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or co-terminate with residence service. PBX trunks are not available as four wire service.	\$85.00	\$10.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
7	DID Trunks - Basic	BMN	trunk	Provide direct inward dialing to stations on the associated trunk group. Transmission loss will not exceed more than 8.0 db.	Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or coterminate with residence service. PBX trunks are	\$70.75	\$18.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.5.1 - Central Office	e Exchange Se	rvices and	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					not available as four wire service.						
8	DID Trunks - Assured	TMN	trunk	Provide direct inward dialing to stations on the associated trunk group. Transmission loss will not exceed more than 5.5 db.	Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or coterminate with residence service. PBX trunks are not available as four wire service.	\$85.00	\$19.35	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
9	DID Station Numbers 1st 100	ND8	Block	Block of 100 telephone numbers used to work with DID trunking		\$400.00	\$10.00	\$135.00	Yes	No	Required
10	Additional DID Station Numbers	NDA	Block	Each additional block of 100 numbers used to work with DID trunking		\$70.00	\$10.00	\$70.00	Yes	No	Required
Table	18.2.5.1.b - Central Of	fice Trunk Serv	ices and Fe	eatures			•	•		•	
11	End-User Speed Calling	ESF	Line	Speed Calling 30		\$0.00	\$0.25	\$24.00	Yes	No	Required
12	Supertrunk DID Change Charge	DCC	change	Change Charge to remove or add number (s) within a block of DID numbers		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$128.24	Yes	No	Required
13	Block of 20 DID Station Numbers	ND1	Block	Block of 20 DID station numbers in the same trunk group.		\$142.49	\$14.25	\$128.24	Yes	No	Required
14	SuperTrunk - Two Way Trunk Group	SK2	group	Two Way Trunk Group		\$125.00	\$8.50	\$205.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.5.1 - Central Office	e Exchange Se	rvicesand	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
15	SuperTrunk - Out Only Trunk Group	SK3	group	Out Only Trunk Group		\$125.00	\$8.50	\$205.00	Yes	No	Required
16	SuperTrunk - In Only Trunk Group	SK4	group	In Only Trunk Group		\$125.00	\$8.50	\$205.00	Yes	No	Required
17	SuperTrunk - Enhanced Alternate Routing	STEAR	group	Enhanced Alternate Routing	Available only in DMS-100	\$150.00	\$47.50	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
18	SuperTrunk - SuperTrunk Termination	SUPTK	terminati on	SuperTrunk Termination	Requires DS1	\$650.00	\$117.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
19	Two-Way Trunks- Basic - additional	BM2	Each	Additional trunk after first. Provides incoming and outgoing call capability. Transmission loss will not exceed more than 8.0 db	Additional Trunk. Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or co- terminate with residence service. PBX trunks are not available as four wire service.	\$70.75	\$9.00	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
20	Two Way Trunks- Assured- additional	TM2	trunk	Additional trunk after first. Provides incoming and outgoing call capability. Transmission loss will not exceed more than 5.5 db	Additional trunk. Trunks cannot be extended to an off-premises location, or co- terminate with residence service. PBX trunks are not available as four wire service.	\$85.00	\$10.00	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
21	SuperTrunk Network Change Charge	NWCST	change	SuperTrunk Network Change Charge	Miscellaneous Change Charges are incurred as follows:	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$194.73	Yes	No	Required

Catalog B: Category 18 Legacy	Telecommunications
-------------------------------	--------------------

Table 18.2.5.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
					a. each rearrangement or change to standard features and/or Associated services of an existing SuperTrunk service arrangement. b. one per affected SuperTrunk trunk group that has changed through the addition/removal/r earrangement of any trunk group(s), and/or changes to standard or associated services						
22	Stop Hunting Control Arrangement	93B	Identifier	Stop Hunting Control Arrangement is provided where a customer desires to convert hunting in central office trunk lines, FEX lines or hunting individual lines so they may operate as individual lines by operations of a key at the customer's premises.	The control key required is customer-provided. A separate metallic service channel is required. Subject to availability.	\$46.50	\$27.60	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.5.1 - Central Offic	2.5.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features									
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
23	Availability Control Arrangement	P89	Identifier	Availability Control - 1st group of 6 or less. Allows the ability to make a selected group of trunk lines or individual lines busy under control of a key at the PBX attendant position or individual line service location.	Each availability control arrangement has the capacity to control up to sixty (60) trunk or individual lines.	\$200.00	\$13.80	\$200.00	Yes	No	Required
24	Availability Control Arrangement	9GV	Identifier	Availability Control - each additional trunk (7-60) of same group. Allows the ability to make a selected group of trunk lines or individual lines busy under control of a key at the PBX attendant position or individual line service location.	Each availability control arrangement has the capacity to control up to sixty (60) trunk or individual lines.	\$34.50	\$1.20	\$34.50	Yes	No	Required
25	Speed Calling	ESL	Identifier	Speed Calling 8 allows customer to place calls to other telephone numbers by dialing a one or two digit code rather than the complete telephone number.	Customer programmable up to 8 local and/or toll telephone numbers.	\$5.70	\$3.89	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
26	Call Forwarding	ESM	Line	Call Forwarding permits the customer to automatically forward (transfer) all incoming calls to		\$5.70	\$3.89	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required

Table	le 18.2.5.1 - Central Office Exchange Services and Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				another telephone number, and to restore it to normal operation at their discretion.							
27	Busy Call Forwarding	EVB	Line	Busy Call Forwarding permits the forwarding of incoming calls when the customer's line is busy. The forwarded number is fixed by the customer service order.	Calls may be forwarded outside the customer's local central office (C.O.).	\$5.70	\$3.89	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
28	Restricted Call Forwarding	EVC	Line	Busy Call Forwarding Extended forwards calls to a number outside the customer's local C.O.		\$5.70	\$3.99	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required
29	Call Forward Ring No Answer	EVD	Line	Delayed Call Forwarding permits the forwarding of incoming calls when the customer's line remains unanswered after customer- designated number of rings. The number of rings and the forwarded number are fixed by the customer service order.	Calls may be forwarded outside the customer's local central office (C.O.).	\$5.70	\$3.99	\$5.70	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.2.5.1 - Central Offic	e Exchange Se	rvicesand	Features							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and additional information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
30	Hunting	HTG	Occurren ce	Hunting. Available on Two Way and In only trunks.	Not applied to Out Dial or DID service.	\$30.00	\$0.50	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
31	Night Terminal	NCB	Identifier	Night Terminal. If night terminal is being used, associated trunk is also busy.		\$30.00	\$2.25	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required

Table 18.2.6.1 - IntraLATA Local Calling Usage Services

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by the Contractor: IntraLATA usage consists of Local and Zone 3. We apply usage charges to all direct-dialed calls made over the public-switched network from business telephone lines. Local (also called Zone 1 and Zone 2) use per-minute rates

Geographic Availability: Throughout the AT&T California service area.

Service Limitations and Restrictions: Zone 3 is only available in zoned usage areas as defined by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC).

Table	18.2.6.1 - IntraLATA Lo	cal Calling Usa	ige Service	es							
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
Table	18.2.6.1.a - IntraLATA	Local Calling Us	sage Servi	ces				•			
1	IntraLATA Local Calling up to 12 miles	USGZ12	Minute	Local calling service up to 12 miles		N/A	\$.0081	N/A	Yes	No	Required
2	IntraLATA Local Calling over 12 miles and up to 16 miles	USGZ3	Minute	Local calling service over 12 and up to 16 miles, where available	Zone 3 is only available in zoned usage areas	N/A	\$.0081	N/A	Yes	No	Required

Table 18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail Services and Features

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by the Contractor: A basic voicemail product that has the capability to call transfer, allow inbound call integration, provide MWI to customer's telephone handset, perform basic voicemail functionality such as listening, replying and forwarding voice messages. In addition, the customer can select to enable features which include but are not limited to wireline/wireless integration, primary voice mailbox sharing, and one repository for multiple message types such as wireline/wireless voicemail & FAX. Voicemail can be accessed & managed using a traditional telephone user interface, web browser, wireless device or email.

Geographic Availability: Throughout the AT&T California service area.

Service Limitations and Restrictions: Subject to availability of facilities.

Table	18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail S	ervices and Fea	atures								
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
Table	18.2.7.1.a - Voice Mail	Services and F	eatures								
1	Voice Mail Box Basic	SO2AL	Line	100 messages, three (3) minute length, 30-day save.	For areas requiring 200 mailboxes or more within the same Centrex and where network capabilities exist usage and/or toll will not apply.	\$0.00	\$2.50	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
Table	18.2.7.1.b - Voice Mail	Services and F	eatures								
2	EM-UM Extension	SO2AM	each	Extension Mailboxes allow inbound callers to leave messages for associates, employees or departments in a separate mailbox. This is an efficient and easy way to sort inbound messages	Requires C3UMB. You can have up to 98 extensions on one primary mailbox	\$0.00	\$2.50	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	ble 18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail Services and Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				for multiple employees or departments that share a primary mailbox. Requires C3UMB (primary mailbox). You can have up to 98 extensions on one primary mailbox							
3	EM-Call Tree	C4CT4	each	EM Call Tree is a 4 port network-based call router that allows you to answer incoming calls and route them to different departments, employees or to a recorded announcement. Greets callers with a personalized message and gives them options to transfer or hear information. EM Call Tree includes the following features and capabilities: 4 ports with: 7x7x7 - 3 levels of menu options each consisting of up to seven choices in each level Transfer to a 10 digit dial number or EM mailbox. Global key presses allow callers to navigate		\$0.00	\$196.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	able 18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail Services and Features										
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				through the system while allowing the options to repeat a message, return to the Main Menu or transfer to a location where someone is available to answer the call. Multiple Languages - Call Tree uses English as the default language, but provides the ability to record prompts in up to nine different languages. Names Directory/Dial By Extension - customer can have a names directory or dial by extension located anywhere within their Call Tree (counts as a Node option) Holidays & After-Hours Schedules - Call Tree can support multiple schedules including holidays and after hours Secondary Telephone Numbers (Alt ID) - Customer can have up to 14 additional numbers directed to the Call Tree). Enterprise Customer							

Table	18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail S	ervices and Fea	atures								
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
				Administration Tool (ECAT)							
4	EM-Call Tree Addl port	C4EMC	Addlport	Additional port for EM-Call Tree-Allows additional simultaneous call in the Call Tree. Requires Call Tree C3CT4	Requires C3CT4	\$0.00	\$49.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
5	EM - AO (Enterprise Messaging - Announcement Only)	SO2AO	each	This product offering will provide up to a five (5) - minute greeting. Message deposit and call transfer is not available. This product is only available to existing customers. No new services will be added.	This product is only available to existing customers. No new services will be added	\$0.00	\$10.65	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
6	AT&T Unified Messaging	US1MX	each	AT&T Unified Messaging (UM) provides access to an integrated view of voicemail, email, and faxes from both Internet and voice telephone user interface (TUI) while retaining existing notification and delivery options. This enhancement to our voicemail offering gives customers the ability to manage their messages (email,	Wireless integration requires AT&T wireless service. Retrieving or accessing the mailbox from your wireless phone for any reason is treated as a local call under any block-of-time plan. Local usage rates apply	\$2.50	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	ble 18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				wireline, voicemail, wireless voicemail and fax) by locating all the message types in one depository, with access to the messages from anywhere using their PC, telephone or wireless handset. Users can access email using a web browser or an existing email client (i.e., Microsoft Outlook). AT&T UM mailbox is accessed from an associated local line or when a caller leaves or attempts to leave a message. Retrieving or accessing the mailbox from your wireless phone for any reason is treated as a local call under any block-of-time plan. Includes a 100 MB of storage for all messages. This product offering will provide up to a three (3) - minute greeting. Wireless integration requires AT&T wireless service. Retrieving or accessing the									

Table	ble 18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail Services and Features Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
				mailbox from your wireless phone for any reason is treated as a local call under any block-of-time plan. Local usage rates apply								
7	AT&T Unified Messaging Extension	US1EX	each	AT&T Unified Messaging - Extension Mailboxes allow your inbound callers to leave messages for any of your associates, employees or departments in a separate mailbox. This is an efficient and easy way to sort inbound messages for multiple employees or departments that share a primary mailbox. When your caller hears your Company Greeting, they will be prompted to select an extension to leave a message in. When the caller selects the extension, they will hear a unique greeting for that extension mailbox. They can leave a message in the extension mailbox complete with	An extension mailbox can be added to any primary Unified Messaging mailbox except UM Director. Extension mailboxes have similar features and functionality as the Unified Messaging primary mailbox. You can have up to 98 extensions on one primary mailbox.	\$2.50	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	ble 18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
				delivery options (i.e., urgent, private, etc.). This product offering will provide up to a three (3) - minute greeting. An extension mailbox can be added to the primary Unified Messaging mailbox. Extension mailboxes have similar features and functionality as the Unified Messaging primary mailbox. You can have up to 98 extensions on one primary mailbox. Local Usage rates apply								
8	AT&T Unified Messaging (DID)	US1DX	each	AT&T Unified Messaging DID (UM-DID). Similar to UM, UM-DID is designed for those customers who need a mailbox number that is different from their normal business telephone number. UM-DID can be used as a direct-dial messaging line without disturbing the main business line. This product offering will provide up to a three (3) - minute greeting.	Local Usage rates apply	\$2.50	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required	

Table	ble 18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				Local Usage rates apply									
9	AT&T Unified Messaging Message Director	US1XM	each	AT&T Unified Messaging Message Director (UM- Message Director). Similar to UM, UM Message Director also provides an automated attendant that can route inbound calls to other Unified Messaging mailboxes. This product offering will provide up to a three (3) - minute greeting. Local usage rates apply. This product is only available to existing customers. No new services will be added.	Local usage rates apply. This product is only available to existing customers. No new services will be added.	\$2.50	\$8.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		
10	AT&T Unified Messaging Alternate ID	US1XZ	each	AT&T Unified Messaging Alternate ID service can direct messages from several telephone lines into a single mailbox. This product offering will provide up to a three (3) - minute greeting. Local usage rates apply. Requires US1MX. Up to 15 alt IDs available per main	Requires US1MX. Up to 15 alt IDs available per main mail box. Alternate IDs must be in the same service areas.	\$2.50	\$2.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Table	able 18.2.7.1 - Voice Mail Services and Features Cost par SAAE Delegation Pequired or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				mail box. Alternate IDs must be in the same service areas.									
11	Voice Mail Box	SO2AF	Line	A basic voicemail product that performs basic voicemail functionality such as listening, replying and forwarding voice messages. In addition, the customer can select to enable features which include primary voice mailbox sharing, and one repository for multiple messages. Voicemail can be accessed & managed using a traditional telephone user interface.		\$0.00	\$5.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required		

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by the Contractor: Analog service is a voice grade 2 wire and 4 wire half duplex and full duplex transmission service that supports point-to-point or multi-drop applications.

Geographic Availability: throughout the AT&T California service area

Service Limitations and Restrictions: Subject to availability of facilities.

Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
Table	18.3.1.1.1.a - Analog S	ervices and Fe	atures								
1	Channel Termination Data Transport Service - two wire	T6E2X	Circuit	Two wire channel termination for data circuit without Direct Current (DC) continuity		\$565.13	\$31.67	N/A	Yes	No	Required
2	Channel Termination Data Transport Service - four wire	T6E4X	Circuit	Four wire channel termination for data circuit without Direct Current (DC) continuity		\$565.13	\$40.20	N/A	Yes	No	Required
3	Passive Data Bridging	BCN*	Circuit	Allows multiple locations to be connected or bridged. Passive bridging works with alarm and metering services and is applied to each channel		\$35.00	\$4.76	N/A	Yes	No	Required
4	Variable Mileage Data Transport Service	1L56X	Mile	Variable charge per mile between end points		N/A	\$2.46	N/A	Yes	No	Required
5	Expedite Option	EODXP	Each	Provides service within five (5)		\$400.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required

Table	le 18.3.1.1.1 - Analog Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				Business Days of receipt of Service Requests in areas with available facilities									
6	Data Bridging	BCND*	Port	Allows multiple locations to be connected or bridged		\$81.00	\$4.76	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
7	Alarm Bridging	CNLRX	Port	Each channel. Split band; Requires multipoint circuit.		\$81.00	\$4.76	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
8	Channel Conditioning	GN3RR	Channel	Radio telephone Operation Channel Conditioning		\$239.56	\$31.39	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
9	Central Office Multiplexing - Analog	MQX	Port	Combines multiple circuits onto a single transmission medium.		\$0.00	\$150.00	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
10	C-type Conditioning Type C2	РЗН	Circuit	Controls attenuation distortion and envelope delay distortion. Provides more specific transmission characteristics. Cannot have more than one (1) type of conditioning on a channel		\$123.98	\$31.39	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
11	Forward Call Information (FCI)	A5VFC	Circuit	Information Link that carries voice mail/notification information to a voice switch	Requires UCD group and UCD line. Requires Voice Grade circuit	\$2,374.78	\$332.47	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
12	VG Conditioning	U9Q	Circuit	VG Conditioning C6 Protective Relay		\$293.95	\$31.39	N/A	Yes	No	Required		

Table	Table 18.3.1.1.1 - Analog Services and Features												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
13	Lamp Beehive Signal	LP7	perlamp	One-lamp beehive signal		\$13.50	\$0.70	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
14	VG Switching Arrangement	XPL	Each	VG switching arrangement		\$0.00	\$8.43	N/A	Yes	No	Required		

Table 18.3.1.2.1 - ISDN BRI Services and Features

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by the Contractor: Integrated Services Digital Network (ISDN) offers integrated voice, data, and video transmission over a single phone line, with the quality and increased data speed of digital transmission

Geographic Availability: throughout the AT&T California service area

Service Limitations and Restrictions: Subject to availability of facilities. Note: ISDN BRI will not be available to new customers after June 2016.

Table	ble 18.3.1.2.1 - ISDN BRI Services and Features Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary			
Table	18.3.1.2.1.a - ISDN BRI	Services and I	eatures											
1	Bundled ISDN BRI Package	1M+SL	circuit	B1 and B2 Channels as described in Section Error! Reference source not found Includes all features described in Section Error! Reference source not found		\$347.00	\$31.75	N/A	Yes	No	Required			
2	Basic ISDN BRI Local Usage	USGZ12	minute	Per minute usage per channel for local calls.		N/A	\$.0081	N/A	Yes	No	Required			
3	ISDN BRI Usage Intrastate Switched- to-Switched Daytime	BESS	minute	Per minute usage per channel using switched access Intrastate switched- to-switched, 8:00 am to 4:59 pm		N/A	\$.0023	N/A	Yes	No	Required			
4	ISDN BRI Usage Intrastate Switched- to-Switched Evening	BIESS	minute	Per minute usage rate per channel using switched access Intrastate switched-to-switched, 5:00 pm to 7:59 am.		N/A	\$.0023	N/A	Yes	No	Required			

Table	ble 18.3.1.2.1 - ISDN BRI Services and Features Feature													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary			
5	ISDN BRI Usage Interstate Per Channel Daytime	BSSS	minute	Per minute interstate usage, switched-to- switched and switched-to- dedicated, 8:00 am to 4:59 pm.		N/A	\$.0023	N/A	Yes	No	Required			
6	ISDN BRI Usage Interstate Per Channel Evening	BISSS	minute	Per minute interstate usage, switched-to- switched and switched-to- dedicated, 5:00 pm to 7:59 am.		N/A	\$.0023	N/A	Yes	No	Required			
7	Secondary Number	SEDN1	Each	Secondary Number		\$5.00	\$1.00	N/A	Yes	No	Required			
8	Expedite Option	EODXP	Each	Provides service within five (5) business days of receipt of Service Requests in areas with available facilities.		\$400.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required			
9	Hunting	HTG	Occurren ce	Line Hunting; Switch equipment searches group of directory numbers in hunting to find an open line when the dialed number is busy.		\$30.00	\$0.50	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required			
10	Busy Call Forwarding	EVB	Occurren ce	Automatically forwards incoming calls to another permanent number when line in use		\$5.70	\$3.89	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			
11	Call Forwarding	ESM	Line	Transfer all incoming calls to another number of		\$5.70	\$3.89	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required			

	18.3.1.2.1 - ISDN BRI S	1	1		Feature			Cost per	SAAF	Delegation	Required or
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Change	Applied (Yes/No)	Needed (Yes/No)	Discretionary
				the Customer's choosing.							
Table	18.3.1.2.1.b - ISDN BRI	Services and	Features					•			
12	Feature Package 3	FPKG3	Each	Feature Package 3		\$96.00	\$19.00	\$30.00	Yes	No	Required
13	B Channel Primary Number	SAVH1	Each	B2 Channel Primary Directory Number, Unique Number		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
14	Additional use of B Channel Primary Directory Number	MADDC	Each	Multiple Application of Data Device Channel (5ESS Only)		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
15	Incoming & Outgoing Call ID	LXO	Each	Incoming & Outgoing Call ID (5ESS Only)		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
16	Calling Number ID Block, Call Review, Time & Display	PDDL3	Identifier	Can block your number from showing when making outgoing calls. Displays call related information on active calls or displays feature associated with buttons on set. Time and Date will be displayed on telephone set.	ISDN only. Available in 5ESS. Also known as "inspect" in Vendor documentation.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
17	Call Transfer, Consultation Hold, Conference Calling & Hold	BG4	Identifier	Call Transfer, Consultation Hold, Conference Calling & Hold (Provisioning USOC only)		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
18	Functional Signaling Drop	FSDRP	Identifier	Functional Signaling Drop (required with BG4 in DMS office) (DMS Only)		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table	18.3.1.2.1 - ISDN BRI S	ervices and Fe	atures								
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary
19	Information Services Call Blocking	CL9	Line	Prevent user from dialing 900/976 number.	Only blocks direct dialed calls.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
20	Privacy	MPVCY	Identifier	MADN Privacy Key (DMS-100 Only). If Non-private-MADN, MPVCY gives users a way to prevent other users from bridging onto a call in progress on a per call basis.		\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required
21	Privacy Release	PRLKY	Identifier	Allows a conference call between shared numbers.	ISDN only. Both Privacy and Privacy Release may be assigned to the same voice terminal; each requires its own key.	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	Yes	No	Required

Table 18.4.2 - Extended Demarcation Services

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by the Contractor: AT&T Extended Demarc) wiring services support the services covered by Contract for all Customer occupied buildings where services under this Contract are being offered. Extended Demarc wiring includes wire/cable related activities required to extend the demarcation point to the Customer defined termination location or cross-connect point from the Contractor's MPOE. Extended Demarc wiring shall include the necessary wire/cable, connectors, jumpers, panel, and jack. Extended Demarc wiring shall also include associated trouble shooting, testing and labeling.

Geographic Availability: Acampo, Acton, Adelanto, Adin, Agoura, Agoura, Agoura Hills, Agua Caliente, Agua Caliente Springs, Agua Dulce, Aguanga, Ahwahnee, Al Tahoe, Alameda, Alamo, Albany, Alberhill (Lake Elsinore), Albion, Alhambra, Aliso Vicio, Alleghany, Almader Valley, Almanor, Almondale, Alondra, Abaugh, Alpine, Alta Loma (Rancho Cucamonga), Altadena, Altaville, Alviso (San Jose), Amador City, Amargosa (Death Valley). Amboy, American Canyon, Anaheim, Angelus Oaks, Angwin, Annapolis, Antelope, Terminal, Arnold, Aromas, Arrowbear Lake, Arrowhead Highlands, Arroyo Grande, Artesia, Artois, Arvin, Ashland, Asti, Atascadero, Athens, Atherton, Atwater, Atwood, Auberry, Auburn, Avalon, Avenal, Avery, Avila Beach, Azusa, Badger, Bailey, Bakersfield, Balboa (Newport Beach), Balboa Island (Newport Beach), Balboa Park (San Diego), Baldwin Park, Ballard, Ballico, Ballroad, Bangor, Banning, Barnington, Bartlett, Barton, Base Line, Bassett, Baywood Park, Bear River Lake, Bear Valley, Beaumont, Bel Air Estates (Los Angeles), Belden, Bell Gardens, Bell, Bellflower, Belmont, Belvedere, Ben Lomond, Benicia, Benton, Berkeley, Bemuda Dunes, Berry Creek, Bethel Island, Betteravia, Beverly Hills, Bieber, Big Bar, Big Basin, Big Creek, Big River, Biola, Biola College (La Mirada), Birds Landing, Black Hawk, Blairsden, Bloomington, Blossom Walley, Blue Jay, Bodega, Bodega Bay, Bodfish, Bolinas, Bolsa, Bonnta, Bonnt Brisbane, Broderick (West Sacramento), Brookdale, Brookhurst Center, Brooks, Browns Valley, Brownsville, Bryn Mawr, Bryte (West Sacramento), Buellton, Buena Park, Burbank, Burlingame, Burnt Ranch, Burrel, Burson, Butte City, Butte Meadows, Buttonwillow, Byron, Cabazon, Cabrillo, vCadiz, Calabasas Highlands, Calabasas Park, Calabasas, Calexico, California City, California Hot Springs, California Valley, California Valley, California Calabasas, Calexico, California City, California Valley, California Calpine, Calwa, Camarillo, Cambria, Cambrian Park, Cameron Park, Camino, Camp Beale, Camp Connell, Camp Curry, Camp Meeker, Camp nelson, Camp Pendleton, Camp Roberts, Campbell, Campo, Campo Seo, Camptonville, Canby, Canoga Annex, Canoga Park (Los Angeles), Cantil, Cantua Creek, Canyon, Canyon Country (Santa Clarita), Canyon Lake, Canyondam, Capay, Capistrano Beach (Dana Point), Capitola, Cardiff By The Sea (Encinitas), Cardwell, Carlsbad, Carmel Rancho, Carmel Valley, Carmel, Carmichael, Carmelian Bay, Carpinteria, Carson, Cartago, Caruthers, Casitas Springs, Casmalia, Caspar, Castaic, Castle A.F.B., Castro Valley, Catroville, Cathedral City, Catheys Valley, Cayucos, Cazadero, Cecilville, Cedar, Cedar Crest, Cedar Ridge, Cedarpines Park, Cedarville, Century City (Los Angeles), Ceres, Cerritos, Challenge, Chambers Lodge, Charter Oak, Chatsworth (Los Angeles), Cherry Valley, Chester, Chicago Park, Chico, Chilocot, China Lake NWC (Ridgecrest), Chinese Camp, Chino, Chiriaco Summit, Cholame, Chowchilla, Chualar, Chula Vista, Cima, Citrus Heights, City of Commerce, City of Industry, City Terrace, Claremont, Clarksburg, Clayton, Clear Creek, Clements, Clinter, Clio, Clipper Mills, Cloverdale, Clovis, Coachella, Coalinga, Coarsegold, Cobb, Cohasset, Cole, Coleville, Colfax, College City, College Grove Center, Colma, Colorado, Colton, Columbia, Columbia, Columbia, Commerce, Compton, Concord, Cool, Copperopolis, Corcoran, Cornell, Coming, Corona Del Mar (Newport Beach), Corona, Coronado, Corralitos, Corte Madera, Coso Junction, Costa Mesa, Cotati, Coto De Caza, Coulterville, Covrland, Covelo, Covina, Cowan Heights, Coyote, Crenshaw (Los Angeles), Crescent City, Crescent Mills, Cressey, Crest, Crest Park, Cresta Blanca, Crestine, Creston, Crockett, Cromberg, Cross Roads, Crowley Lake, Crows Landing, Cucamonga (Rancho Cucamonga), Cudahy, Culver City, Cummings, Cupertino, Curry Village, Cutler, Cuyama, Cypress, Daggett, Dairy Farm, Daly City, Dana Point, Danville, Dardanelle, Darwin, Davenport, Davis Creek, Davis, Death Valley, Death Valley Junction, Deer Park, Del Kem (Bakersfield), Del Mar Heights (Morro Bay), Del Mar, Del Morro Grove (Monterey), Del Rev, Del Rev, Del Rev, Del Rev, Del Rosa, Del Sur, Delano, Deleven, Delhi, Denair, Denny, Descanso, Desert Center, Desert Hot Springs, Di Giorgio, Diablo, Diamond Bar, Diamond Springs, Dillon Beach, Dinkey Creek, Dinuba, Discovery Bay, Dixon, Dobbins, Dogtown, Dollar Ranch, Dorris, Dos Rios, Douglas City, Douglas Flat, Downey, Downeville, Doyle, Drytown, Duarte, Dublin, Ducor, Dulzura, Duncans Mills, Dunlap, Dunnigan, Dunnigan, Duncans Mills, Dunlap, Dunnigan, Dunnigan, Duncans Mills, Dunlap, Duncans Mills, Dun Dunsmuir, Durham, Dutch Flat, Eagle Mountain, Eagle Rock (Los Angeles), Eagleville, Eartimart, Earp, East Highlands (Highland), East Irvine (Irvine), East Lynwood (Lynwood), East Nicolaus, East Palo Alto, East Porterville, East Rancho Dominguez, East San Pedro (Los Angeles), Eastgate, Easton, Eastside, Eastvale, Echo Dake, Echo Park (Los Angeles), Edgemont (Moreno Valley), Edgewood, Edison, Edwards, Cerrito, El Dorado, El Dorado, El Dorado, El Dorado, El Macero, El Macero, El Modena, El Monte, El Nido, El Portal, El Segundo, El Sobrante, El Toro (Lake Forest), El Toro M.C.A.S., El Verano, El Viejo, Eldridge, Elizabeth Lake, Elk, Elk Creek, Elk Grove, Elmira, Elmwood, Elverta, Emerald Hills (Redwood City), Emeryville, Emigrant Gap, Empire, Encinitas, Encino (Los Angeles), Escalon, Escondido, Esparto, Essex, Etiwanda (Rancho Cucamonga), Etna, Exeter, Fair Oaks, Fairfax, Fairfield, Fairmount, Fallbrook, Fa Fish Camp, Five Points, Flinn Springs, Flintridge (La Canada/Flintridge), Florence, Floriston, Flournoy, Folsom, Fontana, Foothill Ranch, Forest Falls, Forest Glen, Forest Glen, Forest Park, Forest Ranch, Forest Ranch, Forest Falls, Forest Falls, Forest Glen, Forest Falls, Forest Ranch, Forest Ranch, Forest Ranch, Forest Falls, Forest F Forestville, Forks of Salmon, Fort Dick, Fort Irwin, Fort Ord, For Fremont, French Camp, Fresno, Friant, Friendly Valley (Santa Clarita), Frontera, Fullerton, Fulton, Galt, Garden Grove, Garden Valley, Gardena, Garey, Garnet, Gasquet, Gaviota, Gazelle, George A.F.B., Georgetown, Gerber, Geyserville, Giant Forest, Gillman Hot Springs, Gilroy, Glassell Park (Los Angeles), Glen Avon, Glen Ellen, Glencoe, Glendale, Glendora, Glenhaven, Glennville, Gold River, Gold Run, Golden Hills, Goleta, Gonzales, Goodyears Bar, Gorman, Goshen, Government Island, Graeagle, Granada Hills (Los Angeles), Grand Terrace, Granite Bay, Grass Valley, Graton, Green Valley, Green Valley, Lake, Greenacres, Greenacres, Greenacres, Greenacres, Greenfield, Greenview, Greenville, Greenwood, Grenada, Gridley, Grimes, Grizzly Flats, Groveland, Grover Beach, Guadalupe, Gualala, Guasti (Ontario), Guatay, Guerneville, Guinda, Gustine, Hacienda Heights, Halcyon, Half Moon Bay, Hamilton A.F.B. (Novato), Hamilton City, Hanford, Happy Camp, Harbison Canyon, Harbor City (Los Angeles), Hamony, Hathaway Pines, Hayasu Lake, Hawaiian Gardens, Hawthorne, Hayfork, Hayward, Hazard, Healdsburg, Heber, Helena, Helendale, Helm, Hernet, Herald, Hercules, Herlong, Hermosa Beach, Hemdon, Hesperia, Heyer, Hickman, Hidden Hills, Highgrove, Highland Park (Los Angeles), Highland, Highway City (Fresno), Hillsborough, Hillsdale (San Mateo), Hilmar, Hilt, Hinkley, Hobergs, Hollister, Hollywood (Los Angeles), Holt, Holtville, Holy City, Homeland, Homestead, Homewood, Honby, Hood, Hope Valley (Forest Camp), Hopland, Hornbrook, Hornitos, Horse Creek, Horse Lake, Hughson, Hume, Huntington, Huntington Beach, Huntington Lake, Huntington Park, Huron, Hyampom, Hyde Park (Los Angeles), Idria, Idyllwild, Ignacio (Novato), Imola (Napa), Imperial Beach, Imperial, Independence, Indian Wells, Indio, Industry, Inglewood, Inverness, Invo. Invokern, Ione, Iowa Hill, Irvine, Irwindale, Isla Vista, Island Mountain, Isleton, Ivanhoe, Ivanpah, Jackson, Jacumba, Jamacha, Jamestown, Jamul, Janesville, Irvine, Irwindale, Isla Vista, Island Mountain, Isleton, Ivanhoe, Ivanpah, Jackson, Jacumba, Jamacha, Jamestown, Jamul, Janesville, Irvine, Irvindale, Isla Vista, Island Mountain, Isleton, Ivanhoe, Ivanpah, Jackson, Jacumba, Jamestown, James Jenner, Johannesburg, Johnstonville, Johnstonville, Johnstown, Jolon, Joshua Tree, Julian, Junction City, June Lake, Juniper, Jurupa Valley, Kagel Canyon, Kaweah, Kedler, Keene, Kelsey, Kelso, Kensington, Kentfield, Kenwood, Kerman, Kernville, Kettleman City, Keyes, King City, Kings Beach, Kings Canyon National Park, Kingsburg, Kinyon, Kirkwood, Kit Carson, Klamath, Klamath River, Knights Ferry, Knights Landing, Knightsen, Korbel, Kyburz, L.A. Airport (Los Angeles), La Canada Flintridge, La Cresta Village, La Cresta Village, La Grange, La Habra Heights, La Habra, La Honda, La Jolla (San Diego), La Mesa, La Mirada, La Palma, La Porte, La Puente, La Quinta, La Selva

Beach, La Verne, La Vina, Ladera, Ladera, Ladera Heights, Ladera Ranch, Lafayette, Laguna Beach, Laguna Niguel, Laguna Woods, Lagunitas, Lake Alpine, Lake Arrowhead, Lake City, Lake Elsinore, Lake Forest, Lake Hughes, Lake Isabella, Lake Los Angeles, Lake Mary, Lake San Marcos, Lake Shastina, Lake Sherwood, Lakeshore, Lakeshor Larkfield, Larkspur, Larwin Plaza, Lathrop, Laton, Lawndale, Laws, Laytonville, Le Grand, Lebec, Lee Vining, Leogett, Leisure World, Leisure World (Seal Beach), Lemon Grove, Lemoncove, Lemoncove, Lemoncove, Lennox, Lenwood, Leona Valley, Larkfield, Lark Leucadia (Encinitas), Lewiston, Liberty Farms, Likely, Lincoln Acres, Lincoln Heights (Los Angeles), Lincoln Village, Lincoln, Linda, Linden, Lindsay, Linnell, Litchfield, Little Norway, Little Valley, Littleriver, Littleriver Oak, Livermore, Livingston, Llano, Loch Lomond, Locke, Lockeford, Lockheed, Lockwood, Lodi, Loma Linda, Loma Mar, Loma Rica, Lomita, Lompoc, London, Lone Pine, Long Barn, Long Beach, Longview, Lookout, Loomita, Lorre Estates, Los Alamitos, Los Alamos, Los Altos, Los Altos, Los Altos, Los Angeles, Los Banos, Los Gatos, Los Molinos, Los Olivos, Los Olivos, Los Olivos, Los Osos, Los Padres, Los Serranos (Chino Hills), Lost Hills, Lost Lake, Lotus, Lower Lake, Lotus, Lower Lake, Los Alamos, Los Ala Lovalton, Lucerne, Lucerne, Lucerne, Lucia, Ludlow, Lucia, Lu Marcelina, March A.F.B., Mare Island (Valleip), Maricopa, Marina Del Rey, Marina Del Rey, Marina, Marine Corps (Twentynine Palms), Mariner, Mariposa, Markleeville, Marsh Manor, Marshall, Martell, Martinez, Marysville, Marther, Maxwell Maywood, McClellan, McCloud, McFarland, McKittrick, Mead Valley, Meadow Vista, Meadow Vista, Meadow Vosta, Meeks Bay, Meiners Oaks, Mendota, Menifee, Menlo Park, Mentone, Merced, Meridian, Mettler, Meyers, Mi-Wuk Village, Middletown, Midland, Midpines, Midway City, Milford, Mill Creek, Mill Valley, Millbrae, Milpitas, Mineral King, Mint Canyon, Mira Loma, Mira Vista, Miracle Hot Springs, Miramar (San Diego), Miramonte, Mission Hills (Los Angeles), Mission Vieio, Moccasin, Modesto, Moffett Field, Mojave, Mokelumne Hill, Monarch Beach (Dana Point), Moneta, Mono Hot Springs, Mono Lake, Monolith, Monrovia, Monta Vista, Montague, Montalvo (Ventura), Montara, Montclair, Monte Rio, Monte Sereno, Montebello, Montecito, Monterey Bay Academy, Monterey Park, Monterey, Montrose, Mooney, Moonridge, Moorpark, Moraga, Moreno Valley, Morgan Hill, Morongo Valley, Morro Bay, Morro Plaza, Moss Beach, Moss Beach, Moss Beach, Moss Beach, Mount Hamilton, Mount Hebron, Mount Herman, Mount Shasta, Mount Wilson, Mountain Center, Mountain Pass, Mountain Ranch, Mount Herman, Wount Shasta, Mount Wilson, Mountain Center, Mountain Pass, Mountain Ranch, Mount Herman, Mount Herman, Mount Shasta, Mount Wilson, Mountain Ranch, Mountain Ran Mt. Aukum, Mt. Baldy, Murphys, Murrieta, Muscoy, Napa, Naples, Nashville, National City, Naval (Port Hueneme), Naval (San Diego), Naval Air Station (Alameda), Naval Air Station (Coronado), Naval Air Station (Lemoor e), Naval Hospital (Oakland), Naval Hospital (San Diego), Naval Supply Center (Oakland), Naval Training Center (San Diego), Navarro, Needles, Nelson, Nevada City, New Almaden, New Cuyama, New Idria, Newark, Newberry, Newberry Springs, Newbury Park (Thousand Oaks), Newcastle, Newhall (Santa Clarita), Newman, Newport Beach, Nicasio, Nice, Nicolaus, Niland, Nipomo, Norco, Norden, North Edwards, North Fork, North Gardena, North Highlands, North Hills (Los Angeles), North Hollwood (Los Angeles), North Palm Springs, North San Juan, North San Juan, North Shore, Northidge (Los Angeles), Norton A.F.B. (San Bernardino), Norwalk, Novato, Nubieber, Nuevo, Nyeland Acres, O'Neals, Oak Park Oak View, Oakdale, Oakhurst, Oakland, Oakley, Oakville, Oasis, Oban, Occidental, Oceano, Oceanside, Ocotillo, Ocotillo, Ocotillo, Olancha, Olancha, Olema, Olive View (Los Angeles), Olivehurst, Olive Valley, Omo Ranch, Ontario, Onyx, Opal Cliffs, Orange, Orange Cove, Orangevale, Orcutt, Ordbend, Oregon House, Orinda, Orland, Oro Grande, Orosi, Oroville, Otay (Chula Vista), Oxnard, Pacheco, Pacific Grove, Pacific House, Pacific Palisades (Los Angeles), Pacifica, Pacoima (Los Angeles), Paicines, Verdes Estates, Palos Verdes/Peninsula, Panorama City (Los Angeles), Paradise, Paramount, Parker Dam, Parkfield, Parlier, Pasadena, Paskenta, Paso Robles, Patterson, Patton, Pauma Valley, Paynes Creek, Pearblossom, Pearland, Pebble Beach, Pedley, Peninsula Village, Penn Valley, Penngrove, Penryn, Permanente, Perris, Perry (Whittier), Pescadero, Petaluma, Phelan, Philo, Pico Rivera, Piedmont, Piedra, Piercy, Pilot Hill, Pine Grove, Pine Valley, Penngrove, Penryn, Permanente, Perris, Perry (Whittier), Pescadero, Petaluma, Phelan, Philo, Pico Rivera, Piedmont, Piedra, Piercy, Pilot Hill, Pine Grove, Pine Valley, Penngrove, Penng Pinecrest, Pinedale (Fresno), Pinetree, Pinole, Pinon Hills, Pioneer, Pione Hill, Pleasanton, Plymouth, Point Arena, Point Mugu, Point Reyes Station, Pollock Pines, Pomona, Pond, Pondosa, Pope Valley, Poplar, Port Costa, Port Hueneme, Porter Ranch (Los Angeles), Porterville, Portola, Portola Valley, Portugese Bend (Rancho Palos Verdes), Posey, Potrero, Potter Valley, Poway, Prather, Presidio (San Francisco), Presidio of Monterey (Monterey), Priest Valley, Princeton, Proberta, Prunedale, Pt. Dume, Pulga, Pumpkin Center, Quail Valley (Menifee), Quartz Hill, Rackerby, Rail Road Flat, Rainbow, Raisin City, Ramona, Rancho Bernardo (San Diego), Rancho California, Rancho Cordova, Rancho Cucamonga, Rancho Dominguez, Rancho Mirage, Rancho Murrieta, Rancho Palos Verdes, Rancho Park (Los Angeles), Rancho Santa Fe, Rancho Santa Margarita, Randsburg, Ravendale, Ravenna, Raymond, Red Bluff, Red Mountain, Red Top, Redlands, Redondo Beach, Redwood City, Redwood Estates, Redwood Valley, Reedley, Refugio Beach, Represa (Folsom Prison), Regua, Rescue, Reseda (Los Angeles), Rheem Valley (Moraga), Rialto, Richardson Springs, Richfield, Richgrove, Richmond, Richvale, Ridgecrest, Rimforest, Rimforest, Rimpau (Los Angeles), Rio Bravo (Bakersfield), Rio Del Mar, Rio Linda, Rio Nido, Rio Oso, Rio Vista, Ripley, Ripon, River Pines, Riverbank, Riverdale, Riverside, Robbins, Rocklin, Rodeo, Rohnert Park, Rolling Hills, Rolling Hills Estates, Romoland (Menifee), Rosamond, Rose Bowl (Pasadena), Roseland, Rosewille, Ross, Rossmoor, Rough and Ready, Rowland Heights, Royal Oaks, Rubidoux, Rumsey, Running Springs, Ruth, Rutherford, Ryde, Sacramento, Saint Helena, Salida, Salinas, Salton City, Salyer, San Andreas, San Anselmo, San Bemardino, San Bemardino, San Bruno, San Carlos (San Diego), San Carlos, San Clemente, San Diego, San Carlos, Dimas, San Fernando, San Francisco, San Gabriel, San Geronimo, San Geronimo, San Jacinto, San Jacinto, San Jose, San Juan Bautista, San Juan Capistrano, San Joan Plaza (San Juan Capistrano), San Leandro, San Lorenzo, San Lucas, San Luis Obispo, San Luis Rey (Oceanside), San Marcos, San Marcos, San Martin, San Mateo, San Miguel, San Pablo, San Pedro (Los Angeles), San Quentin, San Rafael, San Ramon, San Simeon, San Tomas, San Ysidro (San Diego), Sand City, Sanger, Santa Ana, Santa Barbara, Santa Clara, Santa Clarita, Santa Cruz, Santa Fe Sorings, Santa Margarita, Santa Maria, Santa Monica, Santa Monica, Santa Paula, Santa Paula, Santa Rosa, Santa Rosa Valley, Santa Ynez, Santa Ysabel, Santee, Saratoga, Satticoy, Sattley, Saugus (Santa Clarita), Sausalito, Sawtelle (Los Angeles), Sawyers Bar, Scott Bar, Scott Bar, Scott Svalley, Sea Ranch, Seabright (Santa Cruz), Seal Beach, Seaside, Sebastopol, Seeley, Seiad Valley, Seby, Selma, Seminole Hot Springs, Sepulveda (Los Angeles), Seguoia National Park, Shadow Hills (Los Angeles), Shaffer, Shandon, Sharpe Army Depot, Shaver Lake, Sheepranch, Shell Beach (Pismo Beach), Sheridan, Sherman Island, Sherman Oaks (Los Angeles), Sherwin Plaza, Shingle Springs, Shore Acres, Shoshone, Sierra City, Sierra Madre, Sierraville, Signal Hill, Silver Lake, Silver ado Canyon, Simi Valley, Sisquoc, Sites, Sky Valley, Skyforest, Sleepy Valley, Sloat, Sloughhouse, Smartsville, Smith River, Smithflat, Smoke Tree (Palm Springs), Smoke Tree (Twentnine Palms), Snelling, Soda Springs, Solana Beach, Soledad, Solemint, Solvang, Somerset, Somes Bar, Somis, Sonora, Sonora, Soquel, South Shore (Alameda), South Gate, South Laguna (Laguna Beach), South Pasadena, South San Francisco, South Shore (Alameda), South Gate, South Laguna (Laguna Beach), South Pasadena, South San Francisco, South Shore (Alameda), South Gate, Ga Whittier, Spanish Flat, Spreckels, Spring Garden, Spring Valley, Springville, Sprin Beach, Stirrling City, Stockton, Stonyford, Storrie, Stratford, Strathmore, Strawberry, Strawberry, Strawberry, Studio City (Los Angeles), Sugarloaf, Suisun City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summerland, Summit, Sun City (Menifee), Sun Valley, Studio City (Los Angeles), Sugarloaf, Suisun City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summerland, Summit, Sun City (Menifee), Sun Valley, Studio City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summerland, Summit, Sun City (Menifee), Sun Valley, Studio City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summerland, Summit, Sun City (Menifee), Sun Valley, Studio City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summit, Sun City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Sulphur Spr (Los Angeles), Sunnymead (Moreno Valley), Sunnyvale, Sunny, Sunnyvale, S Ranch, Tahoe City, Tahoe Paradise, Tahoe Valley, Tahoe Vista, Tahoma, Talmage, Tamal (San Quentin), Tarzana (Los Angeles), Taylorsville, Tecate, Tecopa, Tehachapi, Tehama, Temecula, Temple City, Templeton, Terminal Island (Los Angeles), Termo, Terra Bella, Thermal, Thornton, Thousand Oaks, Thousand Palms, Three Rivers, Tiburon, Tierra Del Sol, Tierrasanta (San Diego), Tipton, Tollhouse, Toluca Lake (Los Angeles), Tomales, Tomale Park, Topaz, Torrance, Town Center, Trabuco Canyon, Tracy, Tranquillity, Traver, Travis A.F.B. (Fairfield), Tres Pinos, Trinity Center, Trona, Trowbridge, Truckee, Tujunga (Los Angeles), Tulare, Tulelake, Tuolumne, Tuolumne Meadows, Tupman, Turlock, Tustin, Twain, Twa (Irvine), Upland, Upper Lake/Upper Lake Valley, Vacaville, Val Verde Park, Valencia (Santa Clarita), Valinda, Vallecito, Valley Center, Valley Ford, Valley Ford, Valley Ford, Valley Springs, Valley Village, Valvermo, Van Nuys (Los Angeles), Vandenberg A.F.B., Vasquez Rocks, Venice (Los Angeles), Ventucopa, Ventura, Verdugo City (Glendale), Vernalis, Vernon, Veteran's Hospital (Los Angeles), Victor, Victor Victor Vidal, View Park, Villa Grande, Villa Grande, Villa Park, Ventura, Ventura

Vina, Vincent, Vineburg, Vinton, Viriglia, Visalia, Vista Park, Vista, Volcano, Volta, Wallace, Walnut Creek, Walnut Grove, Walnut Park, Walnut, Warm Springs (Fremont), Warner Springs, Wasco, Waterford, Watsonville, Watts, Waukena, Wawona, Weaverville, Weed, Weimar, Weldon, Wendel, West Covina, West Hills (Los Angeles), West Hollywood, West Los Angeles), West Point, West Sacramento, Westchester (Los Angeles), Westend, Westlake Village (Thousand Oaks), Westlake Village, Westley, Westminster, Westmorland, Westport, Westside, Westwood, Westwood (Los Angeles), Wheatland, Wheeler Ridge, Whispering Pines, White Pines, Whiter, Wildomar, Williams, Willow Ranch, Willowbrook, Willows, Wilmington (Los Angeles), Wilseyville, Wilsona Gardens, Wilton, Winchester, Windsor, Winnetka (Los Angeles), Winters, Winton, Wishon, Witter Springs, Woofford Heights, Woodacre, Woodbridge, Woodfords, Woodland Hills (Los Angeles), Woodland, Woodleaf, Woodside, Woodville, Woody, Wrightwood, Yankee Hill, Yermo, Yettem, Yolo, Yorba Linda, Yorkville, Yosemite Lodge, Yosemite National Park, Yountville, Yuba City, Yucaipa, Yucca Valley, Zamora, Zenia.

Service Limitations and Restrictions for 18.4.2.a:

- Installation of cabling for extending services from the MPOE location to the Customer's point of utilization
- Installation of cross connects or rearrangement of existing jumpers
- Identification and testing of existing cabling beyond the MPOE to the Customer's Equipment location
- Customer must provide access to facilities
- Customer to provide primary contact information on work orders
- Standard business office environment, working height is no more than 10ft in height in any area, is open and free of insulation or other obstructions, and has easily accessible drop-in panels.
- Removal and/or replacement of interlocking ceiling tiles not included
- Core drilling not included
- Backboards not included
- No special equipment is required to extend cabling (e.g. scissors lifts, extension ladder, hammer drill, concrete saw, jackhammer, etc.)
- Signal repeaters/extenders and media convertors are not included
- Cutting raised Floor tiles not included
- Material sales tax not included
- Performance bond fees not included
- · Payment bond fees not included
- Permit Fees not included
- Raceways, conduits, communication poles/power poles, sleeves, surface mount channel raceways, innerduct not included
- Racks and associated hardware not included
- Scissor Lift, Man-Lift, Boom Lift not included
- Expedited shipping fees not included
- All material pricing excludes sales tax; material sales tax shall be applied at time of providing customers a quote and aligned to applicable site project addresses;
- All pricing is based upon California Prevailing Wages, prevailing wage craft, Telecommunications Technician, with exception of conduit, electrical and grounding work. Conduit, electrical and grounding work is based on prevailing wage craft Inside Wireman;
- Alterations or deviations, if any, from subsequent proposed scopes of work, or any delays or postponements of the work by the Client or it's agents which result in additional materials or labor costs will be billed at established unitized pricing. Any extra move on or off the job site due to circumstances be yond AT&T's control will be billed as an extra at hourly labor and equipment rates in effect at the time;
- Pricing is valid through original contract term;
- Client is responsible for identifying all areas containing asbestos, lead paint, and /or other hazardous materials. Client is also responsible for the removal and /or abatement of all hazardous materials and any associated costs:
- Client shall provide a suitable and safe environment for AT&T work at Client's premises. Prior to AT&T's commencement of the work proposed hereunder, Client shall advise AT&T of the presence on Client's premises of any substance or material that is classified as a hazardous material, hazardous chemical, hazardous substance, pollutant, contaminant, or toxic substance under any federal, state, or local law, regulation or ordinance ('Laws") related to the pollution or protection of air, ground or surface water, soil or other environmental media or occupational health and safety ("Hazardous Substance") or any other environmental or safety hazard. AT&T does not handle, remove, or dispose of Hazardous Substances on Client's premises:
- If, during its performance of services, AT&T's employees, subcontractors, or agents encounter a Hazardous Substance or other environmental or safety hazard, AT&T may suspend its performance until Client, at its own expense, completes the clean up and removal of the Hazardous Substance in accordance with applicable Laws or removes hazards to AT&T's

satisfaction. Client's failure to abate a Hazardous Substance or hazard within thirty (30) days of AT&T's suspension of performance pursuant to this clause shall constitute a material breach for which AT&T may terminate this contract or the applicable order. Client shall pay AT&T for any costs, expenses, fines, or penalties incurred by AT&T as a result of the presence of the Hazardous Substance or hazard and its suspension of performance;

- All items excludes X-ray and/or radar of walls and floors.
- AT&T does not warrant and / or guarantee customer's existing cable facilities nor warrant or guarantee that the customer's existing cable facilities meets performance requirements, standards compliance or compliance with national or local codes.

Service Limitations and Restrictions for 18.4.2.b:

- The hourly classifications of hours worked for services described in this response/section will be as follows:
 - Regular Hours Hours worked between 8:00am and 4:59pm, Monday through Friday;
 - Overtime Hours Hours worked between 5:00pm and 7:59am, Monday through Friday and all day Saturday;
 - Sunday and Holiday Hours Any hours worked on Sunday or State of California holidays.
- All material pricing excludes sales tax; material sales tax shall be applied at time of providing customers a quote and aligned to applicable site project addresses;
- All pricing is based upon California Prevailing Wages, prevailing wage craft, Telecommunications Technician, with exception of conduit, electrical and grounding work is based on prevailing wage craft Inside Wireman:
- Alterations or deviations, if any, from subsequent proposed scopes of work, or any delays or postponements of the work by the Client or it's agents which result in additional materials or labor costs will be billed at established unitized pricing. Any extra move on or off the job site due to circumstances be yond AT&T's control will be billed as an extra at hourly labor and equipment rates in effect at the time;
- Pricing is valid through original contract term;
- Client is responsible for identifying all areas containing asbestos, lead paint, and /or other hazardous materials. Client is also responsible for the removal and /or abatement of all hazardous materials and any associated costs;
- Client shall provide a suitable and safe environment for AT&T work at Client's premises. Prior to AT&T's commencement of the work proposed hereunder, Client shall advise AT&T of the presence on Client's premises of any substance or material that is classified as a hazardous material, hazardous chemical, hazardous substance, pollutant, contaminant, or toxic substance under any federal, state, or local law, regulation or ordinance ('Laws") related to the pollution or protection of air, ground or surface water, soil or other environmental media or occupational health and safety ("Hazardous Substance") or any other environmental or safety hazard. AT&T does not handle, remove, or dispose of Hazardous Substances on Client's premises;
- If, during its performance of services, AT&T's employees, subcontractors, or agents encounter a Hazardous Substance or other environmental or safety hazard, AT&T may suspend its performance until Client, at its own expense, completes the clean up and removal of the Hazardous Substance in accordance with applicable Laws or removes hazards to AT&T's satisfaction. Client's failure to abate a Hazardous Substance or hazard within thirty (30) days of AT&T's suspension of performance pursuant to this clause shall constitute a material breach for which AT&T may terminate this contract or the applicable order. Client shall pay AT&T for any costs, expenses, fines, or penalties incurred by AT&T as a result of the presence of the Hazardous Substance or hazard and its suspension of performance;
- All items excludes X-ray and/or radar of walls and floors.
- AT&T does not warrant and / or guarantee customer's existing cable facilities nor warrant or guarantee that the customer's existing cable facilities meets performance requirements, standards compliance or compliance with national or local codes.

Table	able 18.4.2 - Extended Demarcation Wiring Services												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
Table	18.4.2.a - Extended De	marcation Wiri	ng Service	s						-			
1	Extended Demarcation - Copper - Regular Hours	EDCR	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a copper trunk or trunking equipment. Includes 300 feet of four-pair cable and an RJ48 or equivalent jack.	AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during regular hours.	\$505.53	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		
2	Extended Demarcation - Copper - Overtime Hours	EDCO	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a copper trunk or trunking equipment. Includes 300 feet of four-pair cable and an RJ48 or equivalent jack.	AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during overtime hours.	\$646.03	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		
3	Extended Demarcation - Copper - Sunday and Holiday Hours	EDCH	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a copper trunk or trunking equipment. Includes 300 feet of four-pair cable and an RJ48 or equivalent jack.	AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during Sunday and Holiday hours.	\$926.98	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		

Table	18.4.2 - Extended Demarcation Wiring Services Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
4	Extended Demarcation - Copper 25 Pair - Regular Hours	EDC25R	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a copper trunk or trunking equipment. Includes 300 feet or less of Category 5 25-pair CMP cable, one (1) patch panel and mounting hardware. Ten (10) Category 5e, three (3) meter jumpers; one (1) 24-port patch panel to be provided in the MPOE and Intermediate Distribution Frame (IDF) for all circuits being extended. Includes associated troubleshooting, testing, and labeling.	AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during regular hours only.	\$1,767.80	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required	
5	Extended Demarcation - Copper 25 Pair - Overtime Hours	EDC25O	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a copper trunk or trunking equipment. Includes 300 feet or less of Category 5 25-pair CMP cable, one (1) patch panel and mounting hardware. Ten (10)	AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during overtime hours.	\$1,978.55	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required	

Table	able 18.4.2 - Extended Demarcation Wiring Services												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				Category 5e, three (3) meter jumpers; one (1) 24-port patch panel to be provided in the MPOE and Intermediate Distribution Frame (IDF) for all circuits being extended. Includes associated troubleshooting, testing, and labeling.									
6	Extended Demarcation - Copper 25 Pair - Sunday and Holiday Hours	EDC25H	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a copper trunk or trunking equipment. Includes 300 feet or less of Category 5 25-pair CMP cable, one (1) patch panel and mounting hardware. Ten (10) Category 5e, three (3) meter jumpers; one (1) 24-port patch panel to be provided in the MPOE and Intermediate Distribution Frame (IDF) for all circuits being extended. Includes associated troubleshooting, testing, and labeling.	AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during Sunday and Holiday hours.	\$2,399.97	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		

Table	Table 18.4.2 - Extended Demarcation Wiring Services												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
	Extended Demarcation - Optical Fiber Link - Regular Hours	EDOR	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a fiber trunk or trunking equipment, Strand count required to provision	customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during regular	\$1,958.58	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		

"		identine			Information	Charge	Onarge				
7	Extended Demarcation - Optical Fiber Link - Regular Hours	EDOR	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a fiber trunk or trunking equipment, Strand count required to provision one/each service only. Includes up to 1,000 feet of 62.5/125 – or 50/125 – micron, two-strand CMP fiber drop cable with adapters, enclosures, connectors, and two (2) SC-SC duplex patch cords for each single circuit extension. Includes associated troubleshooting, testing and labeling.		\$1,958.58	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required
8	Extended Demarcation - Optical Fiber Link - Overtime Hours	EDOO	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a fiber trunk or trunking equipment, Strand count required to provision one/each service only. Includes up to 1,000 feet of 62.5/125 – or	To provide this service, AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during overtime hours.	\$2,309.83	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required

Table	ble 18.4.2 - Extended Demarcation Wiring Services Cost par SAAE Delegation Paguirod or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
				50/125 – micron, two-strand CMP fiber drop cable with adapters, enclosures, connectors, and two (2) SC-SC duplex patch cords for each single circuit extension. Includes associated troubleshooting, testing and labeling.									
9	Extended Demarcation - Optical Fiber Link - Sunday and Holiday Hours	EDOH	Installati on	Wiring services to extend Facilities from the Customer's MPOE to the Customer's point of utilization from a fiber trunk or trunking equipment, Strand count required to provision one/each service only. Includes up to 1,000 feet of 62.5/125 – or 50/125 – micron, two-strand CMP fiber drop cable with adapters, enclosures, connectors, and two (2) SC-SC duplex patch cords for each single circuit extension. Includes associated troubleshooting, testing and labeling.	To provide this service, AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during Sunday and Holiday hours.	\$3,012.21	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		

Table	ole 18.4.2 - Extended Demarcation Wiring Services Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
Table	18.4.2.b - Extended De	marcation Wiri	ng Service	s						•			
10	Inside Wire Repair Plan - Voice	RPB	Each	This inside wire repair plan covers simple voice services jacks. This repair plan applies to Centrex, PBX and Business Access Lines.	At the customer's request, AT&T will isolate trouble to the simple inside wire, jack, or customer provided equipment. AT&T will perform repairs on the customer's simple inside wire and/or jack. AT&T will isolate trouble associated with customer provided equipment but will not repair, adjust, nor perform any other work on customer provided equipment or facilities. WirePro applies only to line(s) that are covered by the plan (Plan is not transferable).	\$0.00	\$0.50	N/A	No	No	Required		
11	Inside Wire Repair Plan - Data	RPL	Each	This inside wire repair plan covers Private Line/Special Access service.	At the customer's request, AT&T will isolate trouble to the simple inside wire, jack, or customer provided equipment. AT&T will perform	\$0.00	\$3.50	N/A	No	No	Required		

Table	Table 18.4.2 - Extended Demarcation Wiring Services													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary			
					repairs on the customer's simple inside wire and/or jack. AT&T will isolate trouble associated with customer provided equipment but will not repair, adjust, nor perform any other work on customer provided equipment or facilities. WirePro applies only to line(s) that are covered by the plan (Plan is not transferable).									

Table 18.4.3 - Station Cabling Services

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by the Contractor: Wiring services for extending services from the Customer's Horizontal Cross-connect location to the Customer's station location.

Geographic Availability: Acampo, Acton, Adelanto, Adin, Agoura, Agoura, Agoura Hills, Agua Caliente, Agua Caliente Springs, Agua Dulce, Aguanga, Ahwahnee, Al Tahoe, Alameda, Alamo, Albany, Alberhill (Lake Elsinore), Albion, Alhambra, Aliso Viejo, Alleghany, Almaden Valley, Almanor, Almandra, Alondra, Albaugh, Alpine, Alta, Loma (Rancho Cucamonga), Altadena, Altaville, Alviso (San Jose), Amador City, Amargosa (Death Valley), Amboy, American Canyon, Anaheim, Angelus Oaks, Angwin, Annapolis, Antelope, Terminal, Arnold, Aromas, Arrowbear Lake, Arrowhead Highlands, Arroyo Grande, Artesia, Artois, Arvin, Ashland, Asti, Atascadero, Athens, Atherton, Atwater, Atwood, Auberry, Auburn, Avalon, Avenal, Avery, Avila Beach, Azusa, Badger, Bailey, Bakersfield, Balboa (Newport Beach), Balboa Island (Newport Beach), Balboa Park (San Diego), Baldwin Park, Ballard, Ballico, Ballroad, Banger, Park, Bear River Lake, Bear Valley, Beaumont, Bel Air Estates (Los Angeles), Belden, Bell Gardens, Bell, Bellflower, Belmont, Belvedere, Ben Lomond, Benicia, Benton, Berkeley, Bemuda Dunes, Berry Creek, Bethel Island, Betteravia, Beverly Hills, Bieber, Big Bar, Big Basin, Big Creek, Big River, Biola, Bolega, Bodega, Bo Bodfish, Bolinas, Bolsa, Bonita, Bonny Doon, Bonsall, Boron, Bostonia, Bouquet Canyon (Santa Clarita), Boyes Hot Springs, Bradbury, Bradford, Bradley, Branscomb, Brea, Brents Junction, Brentwood (Los Angeles), Brentwood, Brisbane, Broderick (West Sacramento), Brookdale, Brookhurst Center, Brooks, Browns Valley, Brownsville, Bryn Mawr, Bryte (West Sacramento), Buellton, Buena Park, Burlingame, Burnt Ranch, Burrel, Burson, Butte City, Butte Meadows, Buttonwillow, Byron, Cabazon, Cabinllo, Calabasas Highlands, Calabasas Park, Calabasas, Calexico, California City, California Hot Springs, California Valley, Calimesa, Calipatria, Calistoga, Calabasas, Calexico, California City, California City, California Valley, California Valley, California Valley, California Valley, California City, Californi Calpine, Calwa, Camarillo, Cambria, Cambrian Park, Cameron Park, Campo, Camp Beale, Camp Connell, Camp Curry, Camp Kaweah, Camp Meeker, Camp nelson, Camp Pendleton, Camp Roberts, Campbell, Campo, Campo Seco, Camptonville, Canby, Canoga Annex, Canoga Park (Los Angeles), Cantil, Cantua Creek, Canyon, Canyon Country (Santa Clarita), Canyon Lake, Canyondam, Capay, Capistrano Beach (Dana Point), Capitola, Cardiff By The Sea (Encinitas), Cardwell, Carlsbad, Carmel Rancho, Carmel Valley, Carmel, Carmichael, Carmichael, Carrotteria, Carson, Cartago, Caruthers, Casitas Springs, Casmalia, Caspar, Castaic, Castle A.F.B., Castro Valley, Catroville, Cathedral City, Catheys Valley, Cayucos, Cazadero, Cecilville, Cedar, Cedar Crest, Cedar Ridge, Cedarpines Park, Cedarville, Century City (Los Angeles), Ceres, Cerritos, Challenge, Chambers Lodge, Charter Oak, Chatsworth (Los Angeles), Cherry Valley, Chester, Chicago Park, Chico, Chilocot, China Lake NWC (Ridgecrest), Chinese Camp, Chino Hills, Chino, Chiriaco Summit, Cholame, Chowchilla, Chualar, Chula Vista, Cima, Citrus Heights, City of Commerce, City of Industry, City Terrace, Claremont, Clarksburg, Clayton, Clear Creek, Clements, Clinter, Clio, Clipper Mills, Cloverdale, Clovis, Coachella, Coalinga, Coarsegold, Cobb, Cohasset, Cole, Coleville, Colfax, College City, College Grove Center, Colma, Colorado, Colton, Columbia, Columbia, Columbia, Commerce, Compton, Concord, Cool, Coppergopolis, Corcoran, Cornell, Coming, Corona Del Mar (Newport Beach), Corona, Coronado, Corralitos, Corte Madera, Coso Junction, Costa Mesa, Cotati, Coto De Caza, Coulterville, Covrland, Covelo, Covina, Cowan Heights, Coyote, Crenshaw (Los Angeles), Crescent City, Crescent Mills, Cressey, Crest, Crest Park, Cresta Blanca, Crestine, Creston, Crockett, Cromberg, Cross Roads, Crowley Lake, Crows Landing, Cucamonga, Cudahy, Culver City, Cummings, Cupertino, Curry Village, Cutter, Cuyama, Cypress, Daggett, Dairy Farm, Daly City, Dana Point, Danville, Dardanelle, Darwin, Davenport, Davis Creek, Davis, Death Valley, Death Valley Junction, Deer Park, Del Kem (Bakersfield), Del Mar Heights (Morro Bay), Del Mar, Del Morto Grove (Monterey), Del Rey, Del Rey, Del Rey, Del Rey, Del Rosa, Del Sur, Delano, Deleven, Delhi, Denair, Denny, Descanso, Desert Center, Desert Hot Springs, Di Giorgio, Diablo, Diamond Bar, Diamond Ba Dinuba, Discovery Bay, Dixon, Dobbins, Dogtown, Dollar Ranch, Dorris, Dos Rios, Douglas City, Douglas Flat, Downey, Downieville, Doyle, Drytown, Duarte, Dublin, Ducor, Dulzura, Duncans Mills, Dunlap, Dunnigan, Dunsmuir, Durham, Dutch Flat, Eagle Mountain, Eagle Rock (Los Angeles), Eagleville, Eartmart, Earp, East Highlands (Highland), East Irvine (Irvine), East Log Angeles, East Lynwood (Lynwood), East Nicolaus, East Palo Alto, East Porterville, East Rancho Dominguez, East San Pedro (Los Angeles), Eastgate, Easton, Eastside, Echo Lake, Echo Park (Los Angeles), Edgemont (Moreno Valley), Edgewood, Edison, Edwards, Cerrito, El Dorado, El Dorado, El Dorado, El Dorado, El Macero, El Macero, El Modena, El Monte, El Nido, El Portal, El Segundo, El Sobrante, El Toro (Lake Forest), El Toro (M.C.A.S., El Verano, El Viejo, Eldridge, Elizabeth Lake, Elk, Elk Creek, Elk Grove, Elmira, Elmwood, Elverta, Emerald Hills (Redwood City), Emervville, Emigrant Gap, Empire, Encinitas, Encino (Los Angeles), Escalon, Escondido, Esparto, Essex, Etiwanda (Rancho Cucamonga), Etna, Exeter, Fair Oaks, Fairfax, Fairfield, Fairmount, Fallbrook, Fallbrook, Fallbrook, Fallbrook, Fallbrook, Fallbrook, Fallon, Fancher, Farmersville, Farmington, Fawnskin, Feather Falls, Fellows, Felton, Fenner, Fiddletown, Fig Garden Village (Fresno), Fillmore, Finley, Firebaugh, Fish Camp, Five Points, Flinn Springs, Flintridge (La Canada/Flintridge), Florence, Floriston, Flournoy, Folsom, Fontana, Foothill Ranch, Forest Falls, Forest Falls, Forest Glen, Forest Ranch, Fores Forestville, Forks of Salmon, Fort Dick, Fort Irwin, Fort Ord, Fort Ord, Fort Ord, Seaside), Foster City, Fountain Valley, Fowler, Frazier Park, Freedom, Freedom, Watsonville), Freedom, Freedo Fremont, French Camp, Fresno, Friant, Friendly Valley (Santa Clarita), Frontera, Fullerton, Fulton, Garden Grove, Garden Valley, Gardena, Garey, Garnet, Gasquet, Gaviota, Gazelle, George A.F.B., Georgetown, Gerber, Geyserville, Giant Forest, Gillman Hot Springs, Gilroy, Glassell Park (Los Angeles), Glen Avon, Glen Ellen, Glendora, Glenhaven, Glennville, Gold River, Gold Run, Golden Hills, Goleta, Gonzales, Goodyears Bar, Gorman, Goshen, Government Island, Graeagle, Granada Hills (Los Angeles), Grand Terrace, Granite Bay, Grass Valley, Graen Valley, Green Valley Greenville, Greenwood, Grenada, Gridley, Grimes, Grizzly Flats, Groveland, Grover Beach, Guadalupe, Gualala, Guasti (Ontario), Guatay, Guerneville, Guinda, Gustine, Hacienda Heights, Halcyon, Half Moon Bay, Hamilton A.F.B. (Novato), Hamilton City, Hanford, Happy Camp, Harbison Canyon, Harbor City (Los Angeles), Hamony, Hathaway Pines, Hayasu Lake, Hawaiian Gardens, Hawthorne, Hayfork, Hayward, Hazard, Healdsburg, Heber, Helena, Helendale, Helm, Hemet, Herald, Hercules, Herlong, Hermosa Beach, Hemdon, Hesperia, Heyer, Hickman, Hidden Hills, Highgrove, Highland Park (Los Angeles), Highland, Highway City (Fresno), Hillsborough, Hillsdale (San Mateo), Hilmar, Hilt, Hinkley, Hobergs, Hollister, Hollywood (Los Angeles), Holt, Holtville, Holy City, Homeland, Homestead, Homewood, Honby, Hood, Hope Valley (Forest Camp), Hopland, Hornbrook, Hornitos, Horse Creek, Horse Lake, Hughson, Hume, Huntington, Huntingt Independence, Indian Wells, Indio, Industry, Inglewood, Inverness, Invo. Invokern, Ione, Iowa Hill, Irvine, Irwindale, Isla Vista, Island Mountain, Isleton, Ivanhoe, Ivanpah, Jackson, Jacumba, Jamacha, Jamestown, Jamul, Janesville, Irvine, Irwindale, Isla Vista, Island Mountain, Isleton, Ivanhoe, Ivanpah, Jackson, Jacumba, Jamacha, Jamestown, Jamul, Janesville, Irvine, Irvindale, Isla Vista, Island Mountain, Isleton, Ivanhoe, Ivanpah, Jackson, Jacumba, Jamestown, James Jenner, Johannesburg, Johnsondale, Johnstonville, Johnstown, Jolon, Joshua Tree, Julian, Junction City, June Lake, Juniper, Jurupa Valley, Kagel Canyon, Kaweah, Keddie, Keeler, Keene, Kelsey, Kelso, Kensington, Kentfield, Kenwood, Kerman, Kernville, Kettleman City, Keyes, King City, Kings Beach, Kings Canyon National Park, Kingsburg, Kinyon, Kirkwood, Kit Carson, Klamath, Klamath River, Knights Ferry, Knights Landing, Knightsen, Korbel, Kyburz, L.A. Airport (Los Angeles), La Canada Flintridge, La Crescenta, La Cresta Village, La Grange, La Habra Heights, La Habra, La Honda, La Jolla (San Diego), La Mesa, La Mirada, La Palma, La Porte, La Puente, La Quinta, La Selva Beach, La Verne, La Vina, Ladera, Ladera Heights, Ladera Ranch, Lafayette, Laguna Beach, Laguna Woods, Lagunitas, Lake Alpine, Lake Arrowhead, Lake City, Lake Elsinore, Lake Forest, Lake Hughes, Lake Isabella, Lake Los Angeles, Lake Mary, Lake San Marcos, Lake Shastina, Lake Sherwood, Lakeshore, Lakeshore, Lakeside, Lakeview, Lakeview, Lakeview, Terrace (Los Angeles), Lakewood, Lamont, Lancaster, Landscape, Lang

Larkfield, Larkspur, Larwin Plaza, Lathrop, Laton, Lawndale, Laws, Laytonville, Le Grand, Lebec, Lee Vining, Leggett, Leisure World, Leisure World (Seal Beach), Lemon Grove, Lemoncove, Lemoncove, Lemoncove, Lennox, Lenwood, Leona Valley, Leucadia (Encinitas), Lewiston, Liberty Farms, Likely, Lincoln Acres, Lincoln Heights (Los Angeles), Lincoln Village, Lincoln, Linda, Linden, Lindsay, Linnell, Litchfield, Little Norway, Little Valley, Littleriver, Littleriver Oak, Livermore, Livingston, Llano, Loch Lomond, Locke, Lockeford, Lockheed, Lockwood, Lodi, Loma Linda, Loma Rica, Lomita, Lompoc, London, Lone Pine, Long Beach, Longview, Lookout, Loomis, Lorre Estates, Los Alamitos, Los Alamos, Los Altos, Los Altos Loyalton, Lucerne, Lucerne, Lucia, Ludlow, Lucia, Ludlow, Luqo, Lynwood, Lytle Creek, Macdoel, Maclay, Mad River, Madeline, Madera, Madison, Magalia, Malaga, Malibu, Mammoth Lakes, Manhattan Beach, Manteca, Man Marcelina, March A.F.B., Mare Island (Vallejo), Maricopa, Marina Del Rey, Marina Del Rey, Marina, Marine Corps (Twentynine Palms), Mariner, Mariposa, Markleeville, Marsh Manor, Marshall, Martell, Martinez, Marysville, Mather, Maxwell, Maywood, McClellan, McCloud, McFarland, McKittrick, Mead Valley, Meadow Valey, Meadow Vista, Meadowbrook, Mecca, Meeks Bay, Meiners Oaks, Mendocino, Mendota, Menifee, Menlo Park, Mentone, Merced, Meridian, Mettler, Meyers, Mi-Wuk Village, Middletown, Midland, Midpines, Midway City, Milford, Mill Creek, Mill Valley, Millbrae, Milpitas, Mineral King, Mint Canyon, Mira Loma, Mira Vista, Miracle Hot Springs, Miramar (San Diego), Miramonte, Mission Hills (Los Angeles), Mission Viejo, Moccasin, Modesto, Moffett Field, Mojave, Mokelumne Hill, Monarch Beach (Dana Point), Moneta, Mono Hot Springs, Mono Lake, Monolith, Monrovia, Monta Vista, Montague, Montalvo (Ventura), Montara, Montclair, Monte Rio, Monte Sereno, Montebello, Montecito, Monterey Bay Academy, Monterey Park, Monterey, Montrose, Mooney, Moonridge, Moorpark, Moraga, Moreno Valley, Morgan Hill, Morongo Valley, Morro Bay, Morro Plaza, Moss Beach, Moss Beach, Moss Beach, Moss Beach, Mount Hamilton, Mount Hebron, Mount Herman, Mount Laguna, Mount Shasta, Mount Wilson, Mountain Center, Mountain Pass, Mountain Ranch, Mount Herman, Mount Laguna, Mount Shasta, Mount Wilson, Mountain Center, Mountain Pass, Mountain Ranch, Mount Herman, Mount Herman, Mount Shasta, Mount Wilson, Mountain Center, Mountain Ranch, Mount Herman, Mount Herman, Mount Shasta, Mount Wilson, Mountain Ranch, Mountain Ranch, Mount Herman, Mount Herman, Mount Shasta, Mount Wilson, Mountain Ranch, Mountain Ranch, Mount Herman, Mount Herman, Mount Shasta, Mount Wilson, Mount Herman, M Mt. Aukum, Mt. Baldy, Murphys, Murneta, Muscoy, Napa, Naples, Nashville, National City, Naval (Port Hueneme), Naval (San Diego), Naval Air Station (Alameda), Naval Air Station (Coronado), Naval Air Station (Lemoor e), Naval Hospital (Oakland), Naval Hospital (San Diego), Naval Supply Center (Oakland), Naval Training Center (San Diego), Navarro, Needles, Nelson, Nevada City, New Almaden, New Cuyama, New Idria, Newark, Newberry, Newberry Springs, Newbury Park (Thousand Oaks), Newcastle, Newhall (Santa Clarita), Newman, Newport Beach, Nicasio, Nice, Nicolaus, Niland, Nipomo, Norco, Norden, North Edwards, North Fork, North Gardena, North Highlands, North Hills (Los Angeles), North Hollwood (Los Angeles), North Palm Springs, North San Juan, North San Juan, North Shore, Northnidge (Los Angeles), Norton A.F.B. (San Bernardino), Norwalk, Novato, Nubieber, Nuevo, Nyeland Acres, O'Neals, Oak Park, Oak View, Oakdale, Oakhurst, Oakland, Oakley, Oakville, Oasis, Oban, Occidental, Oceano, Oceanside, Ocotillo, Ocotillo, Ocotillo, Olancha, Olancha, Olema, Olive View (Los Angeles), Olivehurst, Olive Valley, Omo Ranch, Ontario, Onyx, Opal Cliffs, Orange, Orange Cove, Orangevale, Orcutt, Ordbend, Oregon House, Orinda, Orland, Oro Grande, Orosi, Oroville, Otay (Chula Vista), Oxnard, Pacheco, Pacific Grove, Pacific House, Pacific Palisades (Los Angeles), Pacifica, Pacoima (Los Angeles), Paicines, Palo Verde, Palomar Mountain, Palos (San Diego), Palm Desert, Palm Springs, Palmdale, Palo Alto, Palo Verde, Palomar Mountain, Palos Verdes Estates, Palos Verdes/Peninsula, Panorama City (Los Angeles), Paradise, Paramount, Parker Dam, Parkfield, Parlier, Pasadena, Paskenta, Paso Robles, Patterson, Patton, Pauma Valley, Paynes Creek, Pearblossom, Pearland, Pebble Beach, Pedley, Peninsula Village, Penn Valley, Pennorove, Penryn, Permanente, Perris, Perry (Whittier), Pescadero, Petaluma, Phelan, Philo, Pico Rivera, Piedmont, Piedra, Piercy, Pilot Hill, Pine Grove, Pine Valley, Pinecrest, Pinedale (Fresno), Pinetree, Pinole, Pinon Hills, Pioneer, Pioneer, Pioneer, Pioneer, Pioneer, Pinoneer, Hill, Pleasanton, Plymouth, Point Arena, Point Mugu, Point Reyes Station, Pollock Pines, Pomona, Pond, Pondosa, Pope Valley, Poplar, Port Costa, Port Hueneme, Porter Ranch (Los Angeles), Porterville, Portola, Portola Valley, Portugese Bend (Rancho Palos Verdes), Posey, Potrero, Potter Valley, Poway, Prather, Presidio (San Francisco), Presidio of Monterey (Monterey), Priest Valley, Princeton, Proberta, Prunedale, Pt. Dume, Pulga, Pumpkin Center, Quail Valley (Menifee), Quartz Hill, Rackerby, Rail Road Flat, Rainbow, Raisin City, Ramona, Ranchida, Rancho Bernardo (San Diego), Rancho California, Rancho Cordova, Rancho Cucamonga, Rancho Dominguez, Rancho Mirage, Rancho Murrieta, Rancho Palos Verdes, Rancho Park (Los Angeles), Rancho Santa Fe, Rancho Santa Margarita, Ravendale, Rave City, Redwood Estates, Redwood Valley, Reedley, Refugio Beach, Represa (Folsom Prison), Regua, Rescue, Reseda (Los Angeles), Rheem Valley (Moraga), Rialto, Richardson Springs, Richfield, Richgroye, Richmond, Richyale, Ridgecrest, Rimforest, Rimforest, Rimpau (Los Angeles), Rio Bravo (Bakersfield), Rio Del Mar, Rio Linda, Rio Nido, Rio Oso, Rio Vista, Ripley, Ripon, River Pines, Riverbank, Riverdale, Riverside, Robbins, Rocklin, Rodeo, Rohnert Park, Rolling Hills, Rolling Hills Estates, Romoland (Menifee), Rosamond, Rose Bowl (Pasadena), Roseland, Roseville, Ross, Rossmoor, Rough and Ready, Rowland Heights, Royal Oaks, Rubidoux, Rumsey, Running Springs, Ruth, Rutherford, Ryde, Sacramento, Saint Helena, Salida, Salinas, Salton City, Salyer, San Andreas, San Anselmo, San Benito, San Benito, San Benito, San Benito, San Bruno, San Carlos (San Diego), San Carlos, San Clemente, San Diego, San Carlos, San Ca Dimas, San Fernando, San Francisco, San Gabriel, San Geronimo, San Gregorio, San Jacinto, San Joaquin, San Jose, San Juan Bautista, San Juan Capistrano, San Juan Capistrano, San Juan Capistrano, San Gregorio, San Leandro, San Lorenzo, San Lucas, San Luis Obispo, San Luis Rey (Oceanside), San Marcos, San Marcos, San Martin, San Mateo, San Miguel, San Pablo, San Pedro (Los Angeles), San Quentin, San Rafael, San Ramon, San Simeon, San Tomas, San Ysidro (San Diego), Sand City, Sanger, Santa Ana, Santa Barbara, Santa Clara, Santa Clara, Santa Cruz, Santa Fe Springs, Santa Margarita, Santa Mania, Santa Monica, Santa Monica, Santa Paula, Santa Paula, Santa Rosa, Santa Rosa Valley, Santa Ynez, Santa Ysabel, Santee, Saratoga, Saticoy, Sattley, Saugus (Santa Clarita), Sausalito, Sawtelle (Los Angeles), Sawyers Bar, Scott Bar, Scott Svalley, Sea Ranch, Seabright (Santa Cruz), Seal Beach, Seaside, Sebastopol, Seeley, Seiad Valley, Seby, Selma, Seminole Hot Springs, Sepulveda (Los Angeles), Sequoia National Park, Shadow Hills (Los Angeles), Shafter, Shandon, Sharpe Army Depot, Shaver Lake, Sheepranch, Shell Beach (Pismo Beach), Sheridan, Sherman Island, Sherman Oaks (Los Angeles), Sherwin Plaza, Shingle Springs, Shore Acres, Shoshone, Sierra City, Sierra Madre, Sierraville, Signal Hill, Silver Lake, Silverado Canyon, Simi Valley, Sisquoc, Sites, Sky Valley, Skyforest, Sleepy Valley, Sloat, Sloughhouse, Smartsville, Smith River, Smithflat, Smoke Tree (Palm Springs), Smoke Tree (Twentnine Palms), Snelling, Soda Springs, Solana Beach, Soledad, Solemint, Solvang, Somerset, Somes Bar, Somis, Sonora, Soquel, South Shore (Alameda), South Gate, South Laguna (Laguna Beach), South Pasadena, South San Francisco, South Shore (Alameda), South Whittier, Spanish Flat, Spreckels, Spring Garden, Spring Valley, Springville, Sprin Beach, Stirrling City, Stockton, Stonyford, Storrie, Stratford, Strathmore, Strawberry, Strawberry, Strawberry, Studio City (Los Angeles), Sugarloaf, Suisun City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summerland, Summit, Sun City (Menifee), Sun Valley, Studio City (Los Angeles), Sugarloaf, Suisun City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summerland, Summit, Sun City (Menifee), Sun Valley, Studio City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summerland, Summit, Sun City (Menifee), Sun Valley, Studio City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summerland, Summit, Sun City (Menifee), Sun Valley, Studio City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summit, Sun City, Studio City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Summit, Sun City, Sulphur Springs, Sultana, Sulta (Los Angeles) Sunland (Los Angeles), Sunnymead (Moreno Valley), Sunnyside, Sunnyvale, Sunol, Sunset Beach, Sunset Whitney Ranch, Surfside (Seal Beach), Susanville, Sutter, Sutter Creek, Sylmar (Los Angeles), Taft, Tagus Ranch, Tahoe City, Tahoe Paradise, Tahoe Valley, Tahoe Vista, Tahoma, Talmage, Tamal (San Quentin), Tarzana (Los Angeles), Taylorsville, Tecate, Tecopa, Tehachapi, Tehama, Temecula, Temple City, Templeton, Terminal Island (Los Angeles), Termo, Terra Bella, Thermal, Thornton, Thousand Oaks, Thousand Palms, Three Rivers, Tiburon, Tierra Del Sol, Tierrasanta (San Diego), Tipton, Tollhouse, Toluca Lake (Los Angeles), Tomales, Tomale Park, Topaz, Torrance, Town Center, Trabuco Canyon, Tracy, Tranquillity, Traver, Travis A.F.B. (Fairfield), Tres Pinos, Trinity Center, Trona, Trowbridge, Truckee, Tujunga (Los Angeles), Tulare, Tulelake, Tuolumne, Tuolumne Meadows, Tupman, Turlock, Tustin, Twain, Twain, Twain, Twain Harte, Twentynine Palms, Twin Bridges, Twin Peaks, Two Rock Coast Guard Station, U.S. Naval Postgrad School (Monterey), Union City, Universal City, University, U (Irvine), Upland, Upper Lake/Upper Lake Valley, Vacaville, Val Verde Park, Valencia (Santa Clarita), Valinda, Vallecito, Valley Center, Valley Ford, Valley Ford, Valley Ford, Valley Springs, Valley Village, Valyermo, Van Nuys (Los Angeles), Vandenberg A.F.B., Vasquez Rocks, Venice (Los Angeles), Ventucopa, Ventucopa, Ventura, Verdugo City (Glendale), Vernon, Veteran's Hospital (Los Angeles), Victor, Victor, Victor, Victor, Vidal, View Park, Villa Grande, Villa Park, Vina, Vincent, Vineburg, Vinton, Viridia, Visalia, Visalia, Vista Park, Vista, Volcano, Volta, Wallace, Walnut Creek, Walnut Grove, Walnut Park, Walnut, Warm Springs (Fremont), Warner Springs, Wasco, Waterford, Watsonville, Watts. Waukena, Wawona, Weaverville, Weed, Weimar, Weldon, Wendel, West Covina, West Hills (Los Angeles), West Hollywood, West Los Angeles), West Point, West Point, West Sacramento, Westchester (Los Angeles), Westend,

Westlake (Los Angeles), Westlake Village (Thousand Oaks), Westlake Village, Westley, Westminster, Westmorland, Westport, Westside, Westwood, Westwood (Los Angeles), Wheatland, Wheeler Ridge, Whispering Pines, White Pines, Whitewater, Whittier, Wildomar, Williams, Willow Ranch, Willows, Will

Service Limitations and Restrictions:

- The hourly classifications of hours worked for services described in this response/section will be as follows:
 - Regular Hours Hours worked between 8:00am and 4:59pm, Monday through Friday;
 - Overtime Hours Hours worked between 5:00pm and 7:59am, Monday through Friday and all day Saturday;
 - Sunday and Holiday Hours Any hours worked on Sunday or State of California holidays.
- All material pricing excludes sales tax; material sales tax shall be applied at time of providing customers a quote and align ed to applicable site project addresses;
- All pricing is based upon California Prevailing Wages, prevailing wage craft, Telecommunications Technician, with exception of conduit, electrical and grounding work is based on prevailing wage craft Inside Wireman;
- Alterations or deviations, if any, from subsequent proposed scopes of work, or any delays or postponements of the work by the Client or it's agents which result in additional materials or labor costs will be billed at established unitized pricing. Any extra move on or off the job site due to circumstances beyond AT&T's control will be billed as an extra at hourly labor and equipment rates in effect at the time;
- Pricing is valid through original contract term;
- Client is responsible for identifying all areas containing asbestos, lead paint, and /or other hazardous materials. Client is also responsible for the removal and /or abatement of all hazardous materials and any associated costs;
- Client shall provide a suitable and safe environment for AT&T work at Client's premises. Prior to AT&T's commencement of the work proposed hereunder, Client shall advise AT&T of the presence on Client's premises of any substance or material that is classified as a hazardous material, hazardous chemical, hazardous substance, pollutant, contaminant, or toxic substance under any federal, state, or local law, regulation or ordinance ('Laws") related to the pollution or protection of air, ground or surface water, soil or other environmental media or occupational health and safety ("Hazardous Substance") or any other environmental or safety hazard. AT&T does not handle, remove, or dispose of Hazardous Substances on Client's premises;
- If, during its performance of services, AT&T's employees, subcontractors, or agents encounter a Hazardous Substance or other environmental or safety hazard, AT&T may suspend its performance until Client, at its own expense, completes the clean up and removal of the Hazardous Substance in accordance with applicable Laws or removes hazards to AT&T's satisfaction. Client's failure to abate a Hazardous Substance or hazard within thirty (30) days of AT&T's suspension of performance pursuant to this clause shall constitute a material breach for which AT&T may terminate this contract or the applicable order. Client shall pay AT&T for any costs, expenses, fines, or penalties incurred by AT&T as a result of the presence of the Hazardous Substance or hazard and its suspension of performance;
- All items excludes X-ray and/or radar of walls and floors.

AT&T does not warrant and / or guarantee customer's existing cable facilities nor warrant or guarantee that the customer's existing cable facilities meets performance requirements, standards compliance or compliance with national or local codes.

Table	Table 18.4.3 - Station Cabling Services											
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
Table	Table 18.4.3.a - Station Cabling Services											

Table	Table 18.4.3 - Station Cabling Services Feature Cost per SAAF Delegation Required or												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
1	Station Cabling - Horizontal Copper Cat 3	SCCAT3	Each	Wiring services for extending services from the Customer's Horizontal Cross-connect location to the Customer's station location utilizing one (1) 4-pair Category 3 CMP UTP.	The Cat3 station cabling is limited to 300 feet or less. Station cabling will include the necessary Cat3 four-pair CMP UTP cable, two jumpers, up to one 24-port panel or equivalent (if required), and two RJ45 jacks or equivalent. Associated troubleshooting, testing, and labeling is included. To provide this service, AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during regular hours.	\$949.68	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		
2	Station Cabling - Horizontal Copper Cat 5e	SCCAT5E	Each	Wiring services for extending services from the Customer's Horizontal Crossconnect location to the Customer's station location utilizing one (1) 4-pair Category 5e CMP UTP.	The Cat5e station cabling is limited to 300 feet or less. Station cabling will include the necessary Cat5e four-pair CMP UTP cable, two jumpers, up to one 24-port panel	\$995.85	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		

Table	Table 18.4.3 - Station Cabling Services												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
					or equivalent (if required), and two RJ45 jacks or equivalent. Associated troubleshooting, testing and labeling is included. To provide this service, AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during regular hours.								
3	Station Cabling - Horizontal Copper Cat 6	SCCAT6	Each	Wiring services for extending services from the Customer's Horizontal Crossconnect location to the Customer's station location utilizing one (1) 4-pair Category 6 CMP UTP.	The Cat6 station cabling is limited to 300 feet or less. Station cabling will include the necessary Cat 6 four-pair CMP UTP cable, two jumpers, up to one 24-port panel or equivalent (if required), and two RJ45 jacks or equivalent. Associated troubleshooting, testing and labeling is included. To provide this service, AT&T	\$1,104.64	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		

Table	able 18.4.3 - Station Cabling Services												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
					assumes customer has adequate pathways. The labor rate is for work performed during regular hours.								
4	Station Cabling - Horizontal Optical Fiber- IEEE 802.3Z	SCIWO	Each	Wiring services for extending services from the Customer's Horizontal Cross-connect location to the Customer's station location utilizing one (1) 2-Strand Multimode 62.5/125 or 50/125 um optical fiber cable for speeds not greater than one (1) Gbps (IEEE802.3Z). CMP rated.	The Optical station cabling is limited to 300 feet or less of 62.5/125- or 50/125-micron two-strand OFNP fiber drop cable with adapters, connectors and two SC-SC duplex patch cords for each single circuit extension. Associated troubleshooting, testing and labeling is included. AT&T assumes customer has adequate pathways. Enclosures are included. The labor rate for this is for work performed during regular hours.	\$3,129.50	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		

Table	Table 18.4.3 - Station Cabling Services												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
5	Station Cabling - Horizontal Copper - Identify, Test and Label	SCITL	Each	Wiring services to identify, test, and label existing horizontal station cabling per single station location.	Identify, test, and label customer's existing horizontal cable/wire. The labor rate for this is for work performed during regular hours.	\$423.93	N/A	N/A	No	No	Required		

Table 18.4.4 - Migration-Out Professional Services

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by the Contractor: Professional Services that support Customer Migration-Out efforts for Central Office Exchange Services. Some examples are assistance with Customer telephone data, site surveys, site audits, inventory and record management.

Geographic Availability: Domestic U.S.

Service Limitations and Restrictions: None.

Table 18.4.4 - Migration-Out Professional Services													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
Table 18.4.4 - Migration-Out Professional Services													
1	Migration-Out Technical Services Support I - Standard Regular Hours	MO1R	Hour	Technical Services Support I for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only – Regular Hours	Technical Services Support I for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Regular Hours	\$160.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
2	Migration-Out Technical Services Support I - Overtime Hours	MO1O	Hour	Technical Services Support I for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Overtime Hours	Technical Services Support I for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Overtime Hours	\$200.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
3	Migration-Out Technical Services Support I - Sunday and Holiday Hours	MO1SH	Hour	Technical Services Support I for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only – Sunday and Holiday Hours	Technical Services Support I for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Sunday and Holiday Hours	\$250.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required		

Table 18.4.4 - Migration-Out Professional Services												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary	
4	Migration-Out Technical Services Support II - Regular Hours	MO2R	Hour	Technical Services Support II for Central Office Exchange Migration- Out only – Regular Hours	Technical Services Support II for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Regular Hours	\$166.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required	
5	Migration-Out Technical Services Support II - Overtime Hours	MO2O	Hour	Technical Services Support II for Central Office Exchange Migration- Out only – Overtime Hours	Technical Services Support II for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Overtime Hours	\$228.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required	
6	Migration-Out Technical Services Support II - Sunday and Holiday Hours	MO2SH	Hour	Technical Services Support II for Central Office Exchange Migration- Out only – Sunday and Holiday Hours	Technical Services Support II for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Sunday and Holiday Hours	\$288.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required	
7	Migration-Out Network Engineer - Regular Hours	MONER	Hour	Network Engineer for Central Office Exchange Migration- Out only – Regular Hours	Network Engineer for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Regular Hours	\$150.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required	
8	Migration-Out Network Engineer - Overtime Hours	MONEO	Hour	Network Engineer for Central Office Exchange Migration- Out only – Overtime Hours	Network Engineer for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Overtime Hours	\$225.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required	
9	Migration-Out Network Engineer - Sunday and Holiday Hours	MONESH	Hour	Network Engineer for Central Office Exchange Migration- Out only – Sunday and Holiday Hours	Network Engineer for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Sunday and Holiday Hours	\$275.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required	

Table	Table 18.4.4 - Migration-Out Professional Services												
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
10	Migration- Out Professional Services - Senior Engineer - Regular Hours	MOSER	Hour	Professional Services - Senior Engineer for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only – Regular Hours	Professional Services - Senior Engineer for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Regular Hours	\$200.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
11	Migration-Out Professional Services Principle Architect I - Regular Hours	MOPA1R	Hour	Professional Services Principle Architect I for Central Office Exchange Migration- Out only – Regular Hours	Professional Services Principle Architect I for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Regular Hours	\$250.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
12	Migration-Out Professional Services - Principal Architect II - Regular Hours	MOPA2R	Hour	Professional Services - Principal Architect II for Central Office Exchange Migration- Out only – Regular Hours	Professional Services - Principal Architect II for Central Office Exchange Migration-Out only - Regular Hours	\$275.00	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required		

Table 18.4.5 - Services Related Hourly Support

Contractor's Description of Service, include required service description, features and additional features offered by the Contractor: Work performed under this Section is authorized only for situations where the Contractor has dispatched personnel to diagnose a service problem that turns out to be caused by factors outside the responsibility of the Contractor (e.g., Network Interface Units/ circuit terminations, etc.)

AT&T shall provide a fixed hourly rate schedule for labor classifications common to the diagnosis of contracted services. The rates identified shall only be used for the diagnosis of contracted services and no materials shall be provided.

Geographic Availability: US Domestic

Service Limitations and Restrictions: None

Table 18.4.5 - Services Related Hourly Support													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary		
Table 18.4.5 - Services Related Hourly Support													
1	Field Technician Regular Hours	MVV	Hour	Field technician properly trained to an expert level for the service being dispatched to diagnose and/or repair a CALNET Legacy 4 service problem that turns out to be caused by factors outside the responsibility of the Contractor.	Labor only. Bill from time of dispatch status to time tech completes job. The labor rate is for work performed during regular hours only.	\$117.01	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required		
2	Field Service Repair Technician Overtime Hours	MVVO	Hour	Field technician properly trained to an expert level for the service being dispatched to diagnose and/or repair a CALNET Legacy 4 service problem that turns out to be caused by	Labor only. Bill from time of dispatch status to time tech completes job. The labor rate is for work performed during overtime hours only.	\$163.98	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required		

Table	Table 18.4.5 - Services Related Hourly Support													
Line Item #	Feature Name	Contractor's Product Identifier	Unit of Measure	Feature Description	Feature Restrictions, Limitations and Additional Information	Non- Recurring Charge	Monthly Recurring Charge	Cost per Change	SAAF Applied (Yes/No)	Delegation Needed (Yes/No)	Required or Discretionary			
				factors outside the responsibility of the Contractor.										
3	Field Service Repair Technician Sunday and Holiday Hours	MVVH	Hour	Field technician properly trained to an expert level for the service being dispatched to diagnose and/or repair a CALNET Legacy 4 service problem that turns out to be caused by factors outside the responsibility of the Contractor.	Labor only. Bill from time of dispatch status to time tech completes job. The labor rate is for work performed during Sunday and Holiday hours only.	\$257.91	N/A	N/A	Yes	No	Required			